
1 
 

 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONER’S MEETING 

Monday, July 15th, 2024 

224 Seminary Street 

Kenansville, N.C.  28349 

 

6:00 p.m. Meeting Called to Order 

Invocation  

 

Pledge of Allegiance 

 

Approval of Meeting Agenda 

 

Approval of Minutes – Regular Meeting held on June 17th, 2024. (A) 

 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

 

1. Budget Amendments Journal Entry Proof (B) 

2. Tax and Solid Waste Releases - #21940 - #21958 (C) 

3. Bad Debt and Deceased Write Off for Duplin County Health Department Through 

May 2021 (D) 

4. Schedule a Public Hearing for August 5th, 2024 Regarding a Request from Lathan 

Thurman to Name a Lane at 531 Bryce Hardison Road, Deep Run, NC; Albertson 

Township; Lazy Spur Lane (E) 

5. Accept the North Carolina Office of Rural Health SFY 2025 Community Health Grant 

Funds in the Amount of $150,000 and Authorize the Associated Budget Amendment 

(F) 

6. Accept ECU Health Duplin Hospital Foundation Community Benefits Grant Funds in 

the Amount of $15,000 and Authorize the Associated Budget Amendment (G) 

7. Accept Community Care of North Carolina, Inc. – Capacity Building Grant Funds in 

the Amount of $25,812 and Authorize the Associated Budget Amendment (H) 

8. Accept Supporting Women’s Health Services – AA 175 Funding in the Amount of 

$125,000 and Authorize the Associated Budget Amendment (I) 

9. Reappoint Cheryl Hooks, DNP, FNP-BC as the Nurse Representative to the Duplin 

County Board of Health for a Three (3) Year Term Beginning July 2024 and Ending 

June 2027 (J) 



2 
 

10. Accept Home and Community Care Block Grant Funds in the Amount of $467,703 

with a Required County Match of $51,967 for a Total of $519,670 and Authorize the 

Associated Budget Amendment (K) 

11. Approve Amendment and Renewal Contract Between Duplin County and Diamond 

Food Enterprises for Fiscal Year 24-25 (L) 

12. Centennial Birthday Greeting to Ms. Andoria Middleton on the Occasion of her 101st 

Birthday (M) 

13. Award Duplin County Drinking Water Systems Asset Inventory and Assessment 

Project to McDavid Associates, Inc. (N) 

14. Approve the Stream Debris Removal Contract Between Duplin County and Daniel 

Steiner d/b/a Snatch-It Clearing in the Amount of $11,342 and Authorize Chairman to 

Sign (O) 

15. Approve the Limestone Creek Streamflow Rehabilitation (StRAP) Contract Between 

Duplin County and Daniel Steiner d/b/a/ Snatch-It Clearing in the Amount of $11,843 

and Authorize Chairman to Sign (P) 

16. Approve Beaver Management Assistance Program Cooperative Service Agreement 

#23-7237-3117-RA Between Duplin County and the United States Department of 

Agriculture Animal and Plant Health Inspection Service (APHIS) Wildlife Services 

(WS) and Authorize the Chairman to Sign (Q) 

17. Adopt Capital Project Budget Ordinance for Economic Development Commission 

Infrastructure Improvements and Authorize Chairman to Sign (R) 

18. Approve Contract for Consultant Services Hurricane Florence Hazard Mitigation 

Grant Program (HMGP) Expedited Acquisitions 4393-0017-R Amendment No. 3 – 

Additional Administrative Services due to Increase in Grant Hard Costs Between 

Duplin County and Insight Planning and Authorize Chairman to Sign (S) 

19. Accept the NC Tier II Hazardous Materials Grant Funds in the Amount of $2,500 and 

Authorize the Associated Budget Amendment (T) 

20. Reappoint Gary M. Rose as Tax Assessor and Tax Collector for a Four (4) Year Term; 

Reappoint Joan N. Barnette as Assistant Tax Assessor and Deputy Tax Collector for a 

Four (4) Year Term; and Reappoint Barbara Gail Summerlin as Deputy Tax Collector 

for a Four (4) Year Term (U) 

21. Adopt an Order Directing and Empowering Gary M. Rose, Duplin County Tax 

Collector, to Collect the 2024 Taxes Pursuant to NCGS 105-321(b) and Authorize 

Chairman to Sign (V) 

22. Adopt a Resolution Appointing Gary Rose, Kaytlin Burgess, Carol Jackson and 

Connor Wilkinson as Review Officers and Authorize Chairman to Sign (W) 

23. Approve Engagement Letter Between Duplin County and Greg W. Isley, CPA, PA to 

Provide Professional Outsourced Accounting Services and Authorize Chairman to 

Sign (X) 

24. Adopt a Resolution by the County of Duplin Authorizing Execution of Kroger Opioid 

Settlement and Approving the Second Supplemental Agreement for Additional Funds 

and Authorize Chairman to Sign (Y) 

 

ITEMS TO BE MADE PART OF MINUTES 

 

• Administrative Budget Amendment Journal Inquiry (Z) 

 

 



3 
 

    REGULAR AGENDA ITEMS OF BUSINESS 

6:05 p.m. Public Comments (limited to three (3) minutes per speaker) 

 

6:15 p.m.  Receive Road Concerns 

 

6:20 p.m. Melissa Kennedy, E911 Addressing Project Coordinator  

 Conduct a Public Hearing to Name a Lane (AA) 

 

6:25 p.m. Brandon McMahon, Emergency Services Director 

  Request to Adopt an Ordinance Regulating Ambulance Service and Granting of  

   Franchises to Ambulance Operators (BB) 

 

6:30 p.m. Laura Jones, Library Director  

  Request Acceptance of LSTA Grant Funds for Story Walks (CC) 

 

6:35 p.m. Chris Vernon, Communications Officer 

  Presentation of Retirement Plaque to Vickie Bostic 

 

6:40 p.m. Gary Rose, Tax Administrator 

  Presentation of Retirement Plaque to Kay Nichols 

  Present Tax Collector’s Settlement Statement for the 2023-2024 Tax Year (DD) 

 

6:50 p.m. Bryan Miller, County Manager 

  Request the Election of a Voting Delegate to the North Carolina Association of  

   County Commissioners (NCACC) 117th Annual Conference (EE) 

 General Comments/Announcements 

 

CLOSED SESSION 

Personnel Matters NCGS 143-318.11 (a) (6) 

  

FYI (FF) 

Town of Rose Hill Tax Releases 

Town of Wallace Tax Releases 

 

REPORTS (GG) 

Airport – May 2024 

Animal Services – June 2024 

Animal Services – FY 23-24 Yearly Report 

Building Inspections – June 2024 

Communications/911 Addressing – June 2024 

Cowan Museum – February – June 2024 

Finance – FY 2024 Sales tax Report for April Received in July 

Garage – June 2024 

Register of Deeds – June 2024 

Social Services – May 2024 

Soil & Water – June 2024 

Solid Waste – June 2024 

 

 



4 
 

ADJOURN 

 

The Board will adjourn until Monday, August 5th, 2024 at 6:00 p.m. for a Commissioners 

Meeting at the Administrative Building located at 224 Seminary Street in Kenansville, N.C. 



1 
 

 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONER’S MEETING 

Monday, July 15th, 2024 

224 Seminary Street 

Kenansville, N.C.  28349 

 

COMMISSIONER’S INFORMATION BULLETIN 

 

TO:   Commissioner Branch  

            Commissioner Dowe  

Commissioner D. Edwards 

Commissioner Garner 

Commissioner J. Edwards 

 

FROM:   Jaime W. Carr/Clerk to the Board 

 

DATE:    Monday, July 15th, 2024 

   

SUBJECT:    Commissioner’s Meeting 

 

1. Meeting Called to Order by Chairman Edwards 

 

2. Invocation given by _________________ 

 

3. Pledge of Allegiance to the Flag of the United States of America. 

 

4. Approval of agenda for tonight’s meeting.  Members of the Board and/or the County 

Manager/Assistant County Manager and/or the Clerk to the Board may request to make 

any changes or additions to the proposed agenda. 

 

RECOMMENDED MOTION: Motion to approve the meeting agenda. 

 

Motion__________2nd__________For__________Against__________Carried______ 

 

5. Approval of Minutes – Regular Meeting held on June 17th, 2024. (A) 



2 
 

RECOMMENDED MOTION: Motion to approve the minutes of the June 17th, 2024 

Board of Commissioners meeting as presented. 

 

Motion__________2nd__________For__________Against__________Carried______ 

 

 

REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

 

1. Budget Amendments Journal Entry Proof (B) 

2. Tax and Solid Waste Releases - #21940 - #21958 (C) 

3. Bad Debt and Deceased Write Off for Duplin County Health Department Through 

May 2021 (D) 

4. Schedule a Public Hearing for August 5th, 2024 Regarding a Request from Lathan 

Thurman to Name a Lane at 531 Bryce Hardison Road, Deep Run, NC; Albertson 

Township; Lazy Spur Lane (E) 

5. Accept the North Carolina Office of Rural Health SFY 2025 Community Health Grant 

Funds in the Amount of $150,000 and Authorize the Associated Budget Amendment 

(F) 

6. Accept ECU Health Duplin Hospital Foundation Community Benefits Grant Funds in 

the Amount of $15,000 and Authorize the Associated Budget Amendment (G) 

7. Accept Community Care of North Carolina, Inc. – Capacity Building Grant Funds in 

the Amount of $25,812 and Authorize the Associated Budget Amendment (H) 

8. Accept Supporting Women’s Health Services – AA 175 Funding in the Amount of 

$125,000 and Authorize the Associated Budget Amendment (I) 

9. Reappoint Cheryl Hooks, DNP, FNP-BC as the Nurse Representative to the Duplin 

County Board of Health for a Three (3) Year Term Beginning July 2024 and Ending 

June 2027 (J) 

10. Accept Home and Community Care Block Grant Funds in the Amount of $467,703 

with a Required County Match of $51,967 for a Total of $519,670 and Authorize the 

Associated Budget Amendment (K) 

11. Approve Amendment and Renewal Contract Between Duplin County and Diamond 

Food Enterprises for Fiscal Year 24-25 (L) 

12. Centennial Birthday Greeting to Ms. Andoria Middleton on the Occasion of her 101st 

Birthday (M) 

13. Award Duplin County Drinking Water Systems Asset Inventory and Assessment 

Project to McDavid Associates, Inc. (N) 

14. Approve the Stream Debris Removal Contract Between Duplin County and Daniel 

Steiner d/b/a Snatch-It Clearing in the Amount of $11,342 and Authorize Chairman to 

Sign (O) 

15. Approve the Limestone Creek Streamflow Rehabilitation (StRAP) Contract Between 

Duplin County and Daniel Steiner d/b/a/ Snatch-It Clearing in the Amount of $11,843 

and Authorize Chairman to Sign (P) 

16. Approve Beaver Management Assistance Program Cooperative Service Agreement 

#23-7237-3117-RA Between Duplin County and the United States Department of 



3 
 

Agriculture Animal and Plant Health Inspection Service (APHIS) Wildlife Services 

(WS) and Authorize the Chairman to Sign (Q) 

17. Adopt Capital Project Budget Ordinance for Economic Development Commission 

Infrastructure Improvements and Authorize Chairman to Sign (R) 

18. Approve Contract for Consultant Services Hurricane Florence Hazard Mitigation 

Grant Program (HMGP) Expedited Acquisitions 4393-0017-R Amendment No. 3 – 

Additional Administrative Services due to Increase in Grant Hard Costs Between 

Duplin County and Insight Planning and Authorize Chairman to Sign(S) 

19. Accept the NC Tier II Hazardous Materials Grant Funds in the Amount of $2,500 and 

Authorize the Associated Budget Amendment (T) 

20. Reappoint Gary M. Rose as Tax Assessor and Tax Collector for a Four (4) Year Term; 

Reappoint Joan N. Barnette as Assistant Tax Assessor and Deputy Tax Collector for a 

Four (4) Year Term; and Reappoint Barbara Gail Summerlin as Deputy Tax Collector 

for a Four (4) Year Term (U) 

21. Adopt an Order Directing and Empowering Gary M. Rose, Duplin County Tax 

Collector, to Collect the 2024 Taxes Pursuant to NCGS 105-321(b) and Authorize 

Chairman to Sign (V) 

22. Adopt a Resolution Appointing Gary Rose, Kaytlin Burgess, Carol Jackson and 

Connor Wilkinson as Review Officers and Authorize Chairman to Sign (W) 

23. Approve Engagement Letter Between Duplin County and Greg W. Isley, CPA, PA to 

Provide Professional Outsourced Accounting Services and Authorize Chairman to 

Sign (X) 

24. Adopt a Resolution by the County of Duplin Authorizing Execution of Kroger Opioid 

Settlement and Approving the Second Supplemental Agreement for Additional Funds 

and Authorize Chairman to Sign (Y) 

 

 

 

RECOMMENDED MOTION:   Motion to approve the consent agenda. 

 

Motion__________2nd__________For__________Against__________Carried_________ 

 

ITEMS TO BE MADE PART OF MINUTES 

 

• Administrative Budget Amendment Journal Inquiry (Z) 

 

 

AGENDA 

 

1. Public Comments (limited to three (3) minutes per speaker)  

 

 

2. Chairman Edwards will receive road concerns from members of the Board or the public on 

behalf of the North Carolina Department of Transportation.  

 



4 
 

3. Melissa Kennedy, E911 Addressing Project Coordinator, will appear before the Board to 

conduct a public hearing regarding a request from Ronald Kenan to name a lane at the 900 

block of Old Wilmington Road, Wallace, NC; Island Creek Township; Ronald Ann Lane, in 

accordance with the Duplin County Addressing and Road Naming Ordinance. (AA) 

 

 Chairman Edwards will open the Public Hearing. 

 

 Receive public comments. 

 

 Chairman Edwards will close the Public Hearing.  
  

 

RECOMMENDED MOTION:  Motion to name a lane at the 900 block of Old Wilmington 

Road, Wallace, NC; Island Creek Township; Ronald Ann Lane, in accordance with the 

Duplin County Addressing and Road Naming Ordinance. 

 

 

Motion__________2nd__________For__________Against__________Carried_________ 

 

 

4. Brandon McMahon, Emergency Medical Services Director, will appear before the Board to 

request an ordinance regulating ambulance service and granting of franchises to ambulance 

operators need to be adopted.  QEH Transport LLC’s d/b/a StellarMed Mobile Transport has 

requested a private ambulance transport franchise within Duplin County.  This ordinance will 

allow QEH Transport LLC’s d/b/a StellarMed Mobile Transport to transport within Duplin 

County. (BB) 

 

 

RECOMMENDED MOTION:  Motion to adopt an ordinance regulating ambulance service 

and granting of franchises to ambulance operators and authorize Chairman to Sign. 

 

Motion__________2nd__________For__________Against__________Carried_________ 

 

5. Laura Jones, Library Director, will appear before the Board to request acceptance of LSTA 

grant funds for Story Walks.  The library has been awarded an LSTA Grant in the amount of 

$19,402 for the placement of Story Walk features in several parks and recreation locations 

around the county. The grant is awarded for the purchase of the apparatus and the materials 

to initially set up the Story Walks. There is a matching amount of $2,307 required for 

construction/installation costs that are not covered in the grant which can be covered using 

Friends of the Library funds. (CC) 
 

 

 

 

 



5 
 

RCOMMENDED MOTION:  Motion to accept the LSTA Grant Funds in the amount of 

$19,402 with a county match of $2,307; authorize the Laura Jones, Library Director and 

Bryan Miller, County Manager to sign the required documents; and authorize the associated 

budget amendment.   

 

Motion__________2nd__________For__________Against__________Carried_________ 

 

 

6. Chris Vernon, Communications Officer, will appear before the Board to present a retirement 

plaque to Vickie Bostic 

 

 

7. Gary Rose, Tax Administrator, will appear before the Board to present a retirement plaque to 

Kay Nichols 

 

 

8. Gary Rose, Tax Administrator, will appear before the Board to present the Tax Collector’s 

Settlement for the 2023-2024 tax year.  Each year, the Tax Collector is required to present 

the Tax Collector’s Settlement to the Board of County Commissioners for approval. (DD) 

 

RECOMMENDATION:  Motion to approve the Tax Collector’s Settlement Statement for 

the 2023-2024 Tax Year as presented.   

Motion__________2nd__________For__________Against__________Carried______ 

 

 

9. Bryan Miller, County Manager, will appear before the Board to request the election of a 

voting delegate and alternate voting delegate to the 2024 NCACC Annual Conference.  The 

NCACC’s 117th Annual Conference Business Session will be held in Forsyth County on 

Saturday, August 10th, 2024 at 2:00 p.m., with each county entitled to one vote on items that 

come before the membership, including the election of the NCACC Second Vice President.   

 

NCACC Constitution, Article VI states: “On all questions, including the election of officers, 

each county represented shall be entitled to one vote, which shall be the majority expression 

of the delegates of that county.  The vote of any county in good standing may be cast by any 

one of its County Commissioners who is present at the time the vote is taken; provided, if no 

commissioner be present, such vote may be cast by another county official, elected or 

appointed, who holds elective office of an appointed position in the county whose vote is 

being cast and who is formally designated by the Board of County Commissioners.  The 

provisions shall likewise govern district meetings of the Association.  A County in good 

standing is defined as one which has paid the current year’s dues.” (EE) 

 

 

RECOMMEND MOTION:  Motion to elect Commissioner __________________ as the 

voting delegate and Commissioner ____________________ as the alternate voting delegate 



6 
 

to the NC Association of County Commissioners 117TH, Annual Conference’s business 

session to be held in Forsyth County on Saturday, August 10th, 2024 at 2:00 p.m. 

 

Motion__________2nd__________For__________Against__________Carried______ 

 

10. Bryan Miller, County Manager, will appear before the Board to make 

announcements/comments. 

 

CLOSED SESSION 

Personnel Matters NCGS 143-318.11 (a) (6) 

 

Motion to go out of regular session and into closed session for personnel matters pursuant to 

NCGS 143-318.11 (a) (6) 

 

Motion__________2nd__________For__________Against__________Carried______ 

 

Motion to go out of closed session and back into open session. 

 

Motion__________2nd__________For__________Against__________Carried______ 

 

FYI (FF) 

Town of Rose Hill Tax Releases 

Town of Wallace Tax Releases 

 

REPORTS (GG) 

Airport – May 2024 

Animal Services – June 2024 

Animal Services – FY 23-24 Yearly Report 

Building Inspections – June 2024 

Communications/911 Addressing – June 2024 

Cowan Museum – February – June 2024 

Finance – FY 2024 Sales tax Report for April Received in July 

Garage – June 2024 

Register of Deeds – June 2024 

Social Services – May 2024 

Soil & Water – June 2024 

Solid Waste – June 2024 

 

ADJOURN 

The Board will adjourn until Monday, August 5th, 2024 at 6:00 p.m. for a Commissioners 

Meeting at the Administrative Building located at 224 Seminary Street in Kenansville, N.C. 

 

Motion__________2nd__________For__________Against__________Carried_________ 



 

1 
 

 

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONER’S MEETING 

Monday, June 17th, 2024 

224 Seminary Street 

Kenansville, N.C.  28349 

 

 The Duplin County Board of Commissioners met at 6:00 p.m. on Monday, June 17th, 

2024 in the Commissioners Room located at 224 Seminary Street, Kenansville, N.C. 

 Present:  Commissioners:  Dexter Edwards; Elwood Garner; Jesse L. Dowe, III; Wayne 

Branch; and Justin Edwards. 

 Also Present: Bryan Miller, County Manager; Carrie Shields, Assistant County Manager; 

Tim Wilson, County Attorney; Chelsey Lanier, Finance Officer; Jaime W. Carr, Clerk to the 

Board and Jasmine Savage, Administrative Specialist.  

 

Call to Order 

 

The meeting was called to order by Chairman Edwards. 

 

Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance 

 

 Invocation was given by Reverend A.J Connors, Mayor for the Town of Warsaw. Mayor 

Connors then led those in attendance in the pledge of allegiance to the flag of the United States 

of America. 

 

Approval of the Meeting Agenda 

 

 Chairman Edwards asked if the members of the Board approved the proposed meeting 

agenda, and if any Board Member, County Manager, Assistant County Manager, or Clerk to the 

Board wished to make any changes or additions to the agenda. No additions/changes made. 

 

 Motion was made by Commissioner Garner, seconded by Commissioner Branch, carried 

unanimously to approve the meeting agenda as presented. 

Approval of the Minutes – Governing Body 

 

jaime.carr
Agenda



 

2 
 

 Motion was made by Commissioner Dowe, seconded by Commissioner Garner, carried 

unanimously to approve the minutes of the June 3rd, 2024 Board of Commissioners meeting as 

presented. 

  

    REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 

 

CONSENT AGENDA 

 

 Motion was made by Commissioner Garner, seconded by Commissioner J. Edwards, 

carried unanimously to approve consent agenda items as listed: Budget Amendments Journal 

Entry Proof; Approve Budget Amendment for Senior Services in the Amount of $4,000.00; 

Approve Budget Amendment for Cooperative Extension in the Amount of $ 3,220.00; Tax and 

Solid Waste Releases - #21924 - #21939; Corrected Tax and Solid Waste Releases #21914 - 

#21916: Duplin County Health Department Bad Debt & Deceased Write Off for Duplin County 

EMS through May 2014; Adopt Amended Resolution to Call Special Election on the Sale of 

Malt Beverages and Unfortified Wine in Duplin County and Authorize the Chairman to Sign; 

Adopt a Resolution to Approve Presentation of Badge and Service Weapon to Retiring Sheriff’s 

Office Employee Lieutenant Michael Maready and Authorize the Chairman to Sign; Adopt a 

Resolution to Approve Presentation of Badge and Service Weapon to Retiring Sheriff’s Office 

Employee Sergeant Randy Forster and Authorize the Chairman to Sign; Schedule a Public 

Hearing for July 15th, 2024 Regarding a Request from Ronald Kenan to Name a Lane at the 900 

Block of Old Wilmington Road, Wallace, NC; Island Creek Township; Ronald Ann Lane; 

Approve Contract Between Duplin County and Vayda Cole to Serve as a Summer Intern at the 

Duplin County Library and Authorize Chairman to Sign; Appoint Jessica Melton and Sonia 

Guardado to the Tourism Development Authority Board for a Four (4) Year Term Beginning 

July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 2028 and Appoint Tabatha Walsh as the Duplin County 

Tourism Development Authority Board Chairman Beginning July 1, 2024 and ending June 30, 

2025; Re-Appoint Mayor A.J. Connors to the James Sprunt Community College Board of 

Trustees for a Term Ending June 30, 2028. 

 

ITEMS TO BE MADE PART OF MINUTES 

 

Administrative Budget Amendment Journal Entry Report 

 

 

AGENDA 

Public Comments    

 

 Angela Mainor appeared during public comments to ask the Board to consider adding 

Juneteenth (June 19th) to the holiday calendar for Duplin County Employees.  Ms. Mainor also 

thanked Bryan Miller for the wonderful job he did on the budget and breaking it down for the 

citizens of Duplin County to understand. 

 

 Andrew Odom appeared during public comments to ask the Board to consider live 

streaming the Board of County Commissioner meeting or to record them so they could be 

viewed after the meeting.  



 

3 
 

  

End Public Comments  
 

 Chairman Edwards received road concerns from members of the Board or the public on 

behalf of the North Carolina Department of Transportation.  

 

Cindy Sallis requested that Popeye Road and Hunting Club Road be looked into. 

 

 Bryan Miller, County Manager, updated the Board on a request made by Commissioner 

Dowe at a previous meeting regarding a way to slow down traffic at James Kenan High School. 
  

 Bryan Miller, County Manager, appeared before the Board to request the adoption of the 

Fiscal Year 2024-25 Duplin County Budget Ordinance.  

 

 Motion was made by Commissioner Dowe, seconded by Commissioner Branch, carried 

unanimously to adopt the Fiscal Year 2024-25 Duplin County Budget Ordinance and authorize 

the Chairman to sign. 

 

 Bryan Miller, County Manager, appeared before the Board to make 

announcements/comments. 

 Motion was made by Commissioner Branch, seconded by Commissioner Dowe, carried 

unanimously to cancel the July 1st, 2024 Duplin County Board of Commissioners meeting. 

 Motion was made by Commissioner J. Edwards, seconded by Commissioner Garner, 

carried unanimously to go out of regular session and into closed session for Acquisition of Real 

Property NCGS § 143-318.11 (a) (5). 

 

 Motion was made by Commissioner Garner seconded by Commissioner J. Edwards, 

carried unanimously to go out of closed session and back into open session. 

 Motion was made by Commissioner J. Edwards, seconded by Commissioner Branch, 

carried unanimously to adjourn until Monday, July 15th, 2024 at 6:00 p.m. for a Commissioners 

Meeting at the Administrative Building located at 224 Seminary Street in Kenansville, N.C. 

 
 

_________________________

Jaime W. Carr 

Clerk to the Board 



jaime.carr
Agenda



























jaime.carr
Agenda



jaime.carr
Agenda

































County Commissioners 

Agenda Request Form 
 

Complete and submit this form along with any supporting documentation to request time on the 

county commissioner’s agenda.  This is not required for items included on the consent agenda. 
 

Representative Name and Department:  Melissa Kennedy/ 911 

Addressing 

Meeting Date: 07/15/2024 

Subject:   Request Public Hearing in accordance of Duplin County 911 Addressing road naming 

Ordinance 

Summary, explanation and background:  Request a public hearing for Lathan Thurman to name a 

lane at 531 Bryce Hardison Rd Deep Run. Albertson township. – Lazy Spur Ln 

Requested Action:  To approve public hearing for August 5, 2024 

Budget impact for this fiscal year:   

Budget impact for subsequent years:   

Time needed to explain to Commissioners: 0 

Attachments:   

jaime.carr
Agenda



 



 



 



 

 

 

Instructions for what to do with attachments once approved: 

 

 

Note: Please have all signatures on any contracts, agreements, etc. prior to board meeting and give all copies to 

Trisha-Ann Hoskins by the agenda deadline. Remember, one original will be retained for the minutes. 



jaime.carr
Agenda









jaime.carr
Agenda







jaime.carr
Agenda









jaime.carr
Agenda





















jaime.carr
Agenda



County Commissioners 

Agenda Request Form 
 

Complete and submit this form along with any supporting documentation to request time on the 

county commissioner’s agenda.  This is not required for items included on the consent agenda. 
 

Representative Name and Department:  Melisa S. Brown, Senior 

Services 

Meeting Date: 7/15/24 

Subject:  Approval to accept HCCBG FY 24-25 funds 

Summary, explanation and background:  The agency received the regional allocation of $519,670 in Home 

Community Care Block Grant funds for fiscal year 24-25.  The HCCBG total is $467,703.00 with a required 

county match (cash; in-kind) of $51,967.00 = $519,670.00.  The grant funds will be utilized to provide senior 

services in the following programs:  congregate nutrition, home delivered meals, in home aide and transportation 

services.   

Requested Action:  

Approval to accept the HCCBG FY 24-25 funds, complete required signatures and approve any budget amendments 

associated with the grant funds.     

Budget impact for this fiscal year:  FY 23-24 - $470, 103.00 – FY 24-25 - $467,703.00.  (A slight decrease from 

previous year $2,400.00). 

 

Budget impact for subsequent years:  N/A 

Time needed to explain to Commissioners: Consent Agenda 

Attachments:  Certification of required match; DAAS 730, 731, 732, 734, 735 (Required signatures) 

 

Instructions for what to do with attachments once approved:  

Please return one original of each document to Melisa. 

 

Note: Please have all signatures on any contracts, agreements, etc. prior to board meeting and give all copies to 

Jaime Carr by the agenda deadline. Remember, one original will be retained for the minutes. 

jaime.carr
Agenda































County Commissioners 

Agenda Request Form 
 

Complete and submit this form along with any supporting documentation to request time on the 

county commissioner’s agenda.  This is not required for items included on the consent agenda. 
 

Representative Name and Department:  Melisa S. Brown, Senior 

Services 

Meeting Date: 7/15/24 

Subject:  Approval to accept amendment and renewal contract with Diamond Food Enterprises for FY 24-25 

Summary, explanation and background:  The initial contract with caterer allows the agency to extend the 

contract for two additional years with provisions in place to not increase the price per meal.  The caterer 

provides the frozen and hot meals for the congregate nutrition clients and the home delivered meal clients.  The 

contractor meets all of the state nutrition standards for the senior meal program.  The HCCBG (Home 

Community Care Block Grant) funds is the main allocation for the meal expenses.  The current meal price 

remains at $5.54 per meal.      

Requested Action:  

Approval to accept the amendment and renewal caterer contract with Diamond Food Enterprises for FY-24-

25. 

Budget impact for this fiscal year:  Home Community Care Block Grant Funds – Congregate Nutrition (Daily – 

hot meals- congregate nutrition site locations - $76,599.00; & Home Delivered Meal Program funds (weekly five 

frozen meals - $82,537.00 = a grand total of $159,136.00. 

Budget impact for subsequent years:   

Time needed to explain to Commissioners: Consent Agenda 

Attachments:  Amendment and Renewal Document 

Instructions for what to do with attachments once approved:  

 

Note: Please have all signatures on any contracts, agreements, etc. prior to board meeting and give all copies to 

Jaime Carr by the agenda deadline. Remember, one original will be retained for the minutes. 

jaime.carr
Agenda





County Commissioners 

Agenda Request Form 
 

Complete and submit this form along with any supporting documentation to request time on the 

county commissioner’s agenda.  This is not required for items included on the consent agenda. 
 

Representative Name and Department:  Melisa S. Brown, Senior 

Services 

Meeting Date: July 15th, 2024 

Subject:  Centennial Birthday Greeting – Ms. Andoria Middleton – 101th Birthday                 

Summary, explanation and background:  Once a senior reaches the 100 years young milestone, participants 

become part of the “centennial club”.  An elite group that is officially recognized and honored with a special 

presentation by elected officials and agency staff members.  The initial proclamation was given at the age of 100, 

and there after a special birthday greeting each year from the Duplin County Board of Commissioners.  Ms. Frankie 

will contact the Commissioner in the district for the event hosted below.  A reminder call to the Commissioner and 

family contact members will be provided closer to the actual celebration event. 

• August 8, 2024 @ 1:30 p.m. – Commissioner Jesse Dowe – Ms. Andoria Middleton  

Requested Action: Commissioner Chairman to sign birthday greetings for centennial client. 

Budget impact for this fiscal year:  NA 

 

Budget impact for subsequent years:  NA 

 

Time needed to explain to Commissioners: Consent Agenda 

Attachments:  A birthday greetings letter for Ms. Middleton.  

Instructions for what to do with attachments once approved: Return document to Melisa S. Brown. 

Note: Please have all signatures on any contracts, agreements, etc. prior to board meeting and give all copies to 

Jaime Carr by the agenda deadline. Remember, one original will be retained for the minutes. 

jaime.carr
Agenda





jaime.carr
Agenda





jaime.carr
Agenda























jaime.carr
Agenda























jaime.carr
Agenda





























jaime.carr
Agenda





County Commissioners 

Agenda Request Form 
 

Complete and submit this form along with any supporting documentation to request time on the 

county commissioner’s agenda.  This is not required for items included on the consent agenda. 
 

Representative Name and Department:  Brian Matthis 

Duplin County Emergency Management 

Meeting Date: July 15, 2024 

Subject:  Request approval of Contract Amendment No. 3 with Insight Planning and the associated budget 

amendment for an increase in monies available for Administrative Services associated with Hurricane Florence 

Expedited Acquisitions within HMGP. 

Summary, explanation and background:  North Carolina Emergency Management reallocated $38,327.95 

from Hurricane Florence Public Administration Grants to Hurricane Florence Hazard Mitigation Grants 

specifically to increase the available funding for sub-recipient management costs, which we use to pay Insight 

Planning for grant management services. 

Requested Action: Approval of the contract amendment and the budget amendment, as well as appropriate 

signatures. 

Budget impact for this fiscal year:  None. Expenditures will be reimbursed through North Carolina Emergency 

Management 

Budget impact for subsequent years: None.   

Time needed to explain to Commissioners: -- 

Attachments:  Contract amendment, NC Emergency Management Letter, & associated Budget Amendment. 

 

Instructions for what to do with attachments once approved: Signatures where necessary. 

 

 

jaime.carr
Agenda



  
CONTRACT FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES 

HURRICANE FLORENCE HAZARD MITIGATION GRANT PROGRAM (HMGP) 
EXPEDITED ACQUISITIONS 4393-0017-R  

AMENDMENT NO. 3 – ADDITIONAL ADMINISTRATIVE SERVICES DUE TO 
INCREASE IN GRANT HARD COSTS 

 
 
WHEREAS, DUPLIN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA, hereinafter called the County, and Holland Consulting 
Planners, Inc., entered into a Contract for Consultant Services (Contract) dated January 28, 2020, to 
provide administrative and management services for the Hurricane Florence Hazard Mitigation Grant 
Program, Expedited Acquisitions Project (4393-0017-R); and 
 
WHEREAS, Holland Consulting Planners, Inc. (HCP), and INSIGHT PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT, LLC 
(Insight), subsequently entered into an Assumption Agreement on December 1, 2020, whereby all HCP 
rights, title and interest, and contracts were assigned to Insight; and 
 
WHEREAS, the actual acquisition hard costs exceeded the original estimated acquisition hard costs by 
$766,559.00 and a Supplemental HMGP Agreement has been executed to add these additional costs to 
the Hurricane Florence Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (4394-0017-R); and 
 
WHEREAS, North Carolina Emergency Management has notified the County that due to the increased 
acquisition hard costs, additional management costs of $38,327.95 have been approved for the Grant; 
therefore, 
 
THE CONTRACT FOR CONSULTANT SERVICES for administrative and management services for the 
Hurricane Florence Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP), Expedited Acquisitions Project, dated 
January 28, 2020, between DUPLIN COUNTY, NORTH CAROLINA, and HOLLAND CONSULTING PLANNERS, 
INC., which party has subsequently transferred contractual interest to INSIGHT PLANNING & 
DEVELOPMENT, LLC, hereinafter called the Consultant, is hereby amended as follows:  
 
The AFOREMENTIONED CONTRACT between the County and Insight is hereby amended to increase the 
contract amount by $38,327.95 for the additional management costs for the acquisition of the residential 
properties. 
 
All other provisions of this Amendment remain as stated in the original Contract, to the extent that 
responsibilities originally stated for Holland Consulting Planners, Inc., are currently assumed by Insight. 
 
The County and the Consultant each binds himself, his partners, successors, executors, administrators and 
assigns to the other party to the agreements, and to the partners, successors, executors, administrators, 
and assigns of each other party in respect to all covenants of the Amended Contract. 
 
The County and the Consultant hereby agree to the full performance of the covenants contained herein. 
 

[Signature page to follow] 
 

  



 
 
IN WITNESS HEREOF, they have executed this Amendment, this ____ day of _________________, 2024. 
 

INSIGHT PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT, LLC  DUPLIN COUNTY, NC 
 

   

C. Ryan Cox, President  Dexter B. Edwards, Chair 

 

  
 

  

Witness                            Jaime Carr, Clerk to the Board  

 
 

 This contract has been preaudited in the manner 
required by the Local Government Budget and 
Fiscal Control Act. 

 

 

 

 

   
 
__________________________________ 
Finance Officer 
 

  __________________________________ 
Date 

 
 
(SEAL) 
 



 

 

June 2, 2022 

 

Elizabeth Stalls 

Duplin County Planner 

PO Box 950 

Kenansville, NC 28349 

 

Reference:  Hazard Mitigation Grant Program (HMGP) Project 4393-0017-R Duplin County: Acquisition 

of Seventeen (17) Residential Structures Expedited –Additional Sub-Recipient Management 

Cost Funding 

 

Dear Ms. Stalls, 

 

North Carolina Emergency Management (NCEM) Hazard Mitigation (HM) is pleased to inform you that an 

additional $38,327.95 of sub-recipient management costs (SRMC) for the project referenced above is 

approved. This brings Duplin County’s total SRMC funding for this project to $130,246.95. The additional 

management cost is being updated in EMGrants for your project. 

 

The approved cost increase provides funds to support the demolition work the county must complete, which 

was not completed by the end of the Public Assistance (PA) funded work which ended on September 14, 2021. 

 

In order to receive the county’s SRMC, you must submit your reimbursement request in EMGrants.  Please 

remember proper documentation must accompany the request for reimbursement.  Proper documentation must 

show who worked on the project, the number of hours they worked, their weighted rate of pay per hour, the 

property address and activity worked.  If you are using management costs to pay a consultant to assist in the 

completion of your project, then the consultant must also provide their time spent in a management role for 

you and justify their time as specified for a sub-applicant’s employee time. Subrecipients will be reimbursed 

up to 5% of submitted ACTUAL costs expensed.  Final adjustments to management costs will be made at 

closeout when the total award amount is determined based on actual costs to complete the scope of work. 

 

As soon as we receive your reimbursement request, which must be a minimum of $500 for this office to 

process, we will review submitted documentation.  If any discrepancies, you will be contacted to correct.  

Otherwise, we will approve as expeditiously as possible to reimburse your expenses. 

 

Please contact your assigned Project Manager from the HM office if you have any questions. 

 

 

                                                                            Steve McGugan 

                                                      State Hazard Mitigation Officer 

                                                                            Assistant Director / Hazard Mitigation Chief 

                                                                            North Carolina Emergency Management 

                                                                            North Carolina Department of Public Safety 

DocuSign Envelope ID: 2CD1B433-2E4B-4DD6-A45D-FDF6AE776A32DocuSign Envelope ID: 47BCF9E6-56E5-4FA8-87B8-5D9D83BBF16B



BA #     Duplin County

Budget Amendment

Department Title

Department Head's Signature

 (form can be e-mailed to Finance from Dept. Head)

All amendments involving revenues must be approved by the Board of Commissioners

Brief description of why this amendment is being requested:

Revenue 

code Line Item Description Amount

Expense 

code Line Item Description Amount

4933-34824 Disaster Recover 38,327.95 4933-42901 Soft Cost 38,327.95

Total 38,327.95 Total 38,327.95

Finance Signature

Date Approved:

Manager Signature

Date Approved:

Commisioner Approval

Date Approved:

7/12/2024

Emergency Management

BSMJ

Increased funding for Hurricane Florence Expedited Acquisions 4393-0017 from NCEM for grant management services.



County Commissioners 

Agenda Request Form 
 

Complete and submit this form along with any supporting documentation to request time on the 

county commissioner’s agenda.  This is not required for items included on the consent agenda. 
 

Representative Name and Department:  Brian Matthis 

Duplin County Emergency Management 

Meeting Date: July 15, 2024 

Subject:  Request acceptance of the NC Tier II Hazardous Materials Grant and approval of the associated budget 

amendment. 

Summary, explanation and background:  The FY24 NC Tier II Competitive Grant was awarded to Duplin 

County for a county-wide review of hazardous material industries, as well as the completion of a 

comprehensive, Hazardous Materials Response Plan, to be completed by a professional firm. This plan will 

better help responders and industries prepare for hazardous material emergencies and address federal 

requirements for the Local Emergency Planning Committee (LEPC).  

Requested Action: Acceptance of the grant and approval of the associated budget amendment. 

Budget impact for this fiscal year:  None. Expenditures will be reimbursed through North Carolina Emergency 

Management 

Budget impact for subsequent years: None.   

Time needed to explain to Commissioners: -- 

Attachments:  Grant MOA and Budget Amendment. 

 

Instructions for what to do with attachments once approved: Informational only. Discard. 

 

 

jaime.carr
Agenda



For Official Use Only 

  
Tier II Competitive Grant 2024  Page 1 of 9 

 North Carolina Department of Public Safety 

Emergency Management 

Roy Cooper, Governor 

Eddie M. Buffaloe Jr., Secretary 

William C. Ray, Director 

 

NC Tier II Competitive Grant 

Fiscal Year 2024 

 

Memorandum of Agreement (MOA) 

between 

GRANTOR RECIPIENT 

State of North Carolina Duplin County 

Department of Public Safety 224 Seminary Street 

Emergency Management Kenansville , NC 28349 

1636 Gold Star Dr Tax ID/EIN #: 566000296 

Raleigh, NC 27607 UEID #: KZN4GK5262K3 

   

MOA #: 2471027 Award amount: $2,500.00 

Period of performance: January 1, 2024 to January 31, 2025 

Cost center: 102646-1908064- 56900001-0000000-0000-0000000000 

 
1. Purpose 

This grant award supports the hazardous material preparedness activities of Local Emergency Planning 

Committees (LEPCs) as defined in the Emergency Planning and Community Right-to-Know Act 

(EPCRA). These funds are to be used by your county’s or region’s LEPC for hazardous materials 

emergency response planning, training, and related exercises. See Attachment 1 for a description of the 

approved scope of work for this grant.  The scope of work is the approved Application as submitted by 

RECIPIENT with any amendments approved by GRANTOR. 

2. Authority  
In accordance with the provisions of N.C.G.S. §166A-29.1, North Carolina Emergency Management 

hereby awards to RECIPIENT a grant in the amount shown above.  Tier II grants are funded by NC 

annual hazardous materials facility fees collected each year per N.C.G.S. 166A-29.1(f)(3). The funds 

awarded under this grant must be used in compliance with all applicable federal, state, local and tribal 

laws and regulations, including N.C.G.S. §§ 143C-6-21, 143C-6-22, 143C-6-23 and 09 NCAC 03M. By 

accepting this award, RECIPIENT agrees to use these funds in a manner consistent with all applicable 

laws and regulations. 

3. Execution 
The original signed copy of this MOA must be signed by the Official(s) authorized to sign below and 

returned to North Carolina Emergency Management no later than 45 days after the MOA has been 

submitted for execution. This MOA shall be effective upon return of execution from RECIPIENT and 

final approval by GRANTOR. Upon final approval of this MOA by GRANTOR, the period of 

performance (POP) for this grant is January 1, 2023 – January 31, 2024.  Grant funds will be disbursed 

upon receipt of evidence that funds have been invoiced, products or services received, and proof of 

payment is provided.   RECIPIENT understands and agrees that: 

A. Total funding level available under this MOA will not exceed the awarded amount, 

$2,500.00.   RECIPIENT acknowledges that they are further prohibited from sub-granting these 

funds.  Attachment 1 provides scope of work and payment amounts to be paid to RECIPIENT.   

DocuSign Envelope ID: DDC03F80-7B43-4226-AB09-8265C17C2E08

https://www.ncdps.gov/emergency-management/hazardous-materials/local-emergency-planning-committees
https://www.ncdps.gov/emergency-management/hazardous-materials/local-emergency-planning-committees
https://www.ncleg.net/enactedlegislation/statutes/html/bychapter/chapter_166a.html#:~:text=(3)%C2%A0%C2%A0%C2%A0%C2%A0%C2%A0%C2%A0%C2%A0%20To%20provide%20grants%20to%20counties%20for%20hazardous%20materials%20emergency%20response%20planning%2C%20training%2C%20and%20related%20exercises.


For Official Use Only 

  
Tier II Competitive Grant 2024  Page 2 of 9 

B. Pursuant to N.C.G.S 143C-1-1, RECIPIENT understands and agrees that funding shall be subject to 

the availability of appropriated funds.  However, in the event of MOA termination due to lack of 

adequate appropriated funds, GRANTOR will ensure that it will pay for services and goods acquired 

and obligated on or before the end of POP. 

C. RECIPIENT must meet all funding requirements contained herein. Non-compliance may result in 

denial of reimbursement request(s) or suspension/revocation of grant funds awarded for 

this project.  See also paragraph 6 below regarding compliance. 

4. Compensation 
GRANTOR agrees that it will pay RECIPIENT complete and total compensation for the services to be 

rendered by RECIPIENT. Payment to RECIPIENT for expenditures under this Memorandum of 

Agreement (MOA) will be reimbursed after RECIPIENT’s cost report, detailed invoices, and proof of 

payment are submitted and approved for eligible expenses, and goods and/or services have been received. 

Cost report form to request reimbursement will be provided to RECIPIENT by GRANTOR. These 

documents must be submitted no later than February 29, 2024.  

5. Conditions 
The funds awarded under this grant must only be used by your county’s or region’s LEPC for the 

purposes of hazardous materials emergency response planning, training and exercises, as mandated in 

N.C.G.S.§ 166A-29.1. Furthermore, the use of these funds must meet one or more of the follow criteria: 

A. Support costs incurred facilitating LEPC meetings (e.g. printing, general office supplies, food and 

non-alcoholic beverages) 

B. Support regional LEPC meetings and collaboration 

C. Enhance LEPC outreach efforts or produce promotional materials 

D. Host or support local and regional LEPC conferences 

E. Create or update hazardous material emergency response plans 

F. Support local or regional hazardous materials response exercises 

G. Support purchases of items for use in hazardous materials emergency response planning, training and 

exercises. 

Purchases of items must be pre-approved in writing by the NCEM Hazardous Materials Group 

(NCEM hazardous materials group). 

H. Under no circumstances are the following items eligible for funding under this grant: 

 Salaries or benefits for any employee 

 Unmanned vehicles 

 Support for programs not focused on hazardous materials preparedness 

Funding is contingent upon completion of all funding requirements. Grant funds must be used to 

supplement existing federal, state and local funds for program activities and must not replace (supplant) 

those funds that have been appropriated for the same purpose. Jurisdictions must provide assurances and 

certifications as to non-supplanting and the existence of proper administrative/financial procedures as 

requested. The following conditions must be adhered to during the entire duration of the grant program: 

I. RECIPIENT must: 

i. Have and maintain a current Unique Entity Identifier created in the System for Award 

Management (SAM). Current SAM registrants have already been assigned their Unique Entity 

Identifier and can view it within SAM. 

ii. Ensure their organization is registered with SAM. Every applicant is required to have their name, 

address and EIN up to date in SAM. SAM information can be found at http://www.sam.gov. 

After April 4, 2022, the Unique Entity Identifier in SAM becomes the official identifier for doing 

business with the U.S. Government. 

iii. Complete any procurements, expenditures, and receipt of goods or services within the POP.  

DocuSign Envelope ID: DDC03F80-7B43-4226-AB09-8265C17C2E08

mailto:hazmat@ncdps.gov
http://www.sam.gov/


For Official Use Only 

  
Tier II Competitive Grant 2024  Page 3 of 9 

iv. No Match Requirement. RECIPIENT is not required to provide matching funds in cash or in-kind 

for this award. 

v. Submit requests for reimbursement on cost report form with all required documentation attached 

to hazmatgrants@ncdps.gov and copy designated NCEM grant manager.  Once GRANTOR is 

satisfied that RECIPIENT has provided all required documentation, the reimbursement request 

can be processed for payment.  The distributions of funds will be coded to cost center 1506-8064 

in the North Carolina Accounting System (NCAS).  

J. Required Documents/Forms. RECIPIENT must submit the following documents to GRANTOR 

(hazmatgrants@ncdps.gov) upon execution of this MOA.  This is not required if RECIPIENT has 

previously submitted these documents to GRANTOR for this or any other grant; however, if any of 

these documents are not current, RECIPIENT must submit updated document(s): 

i. W-9 (09 NCAC 03M .0202)  

ii. Electronic Payment / Vendor Verification Form (09 NCAC 03M .0202)  

iii. Conflict of Interest Policy (G.S. 143C-6-23.(b))  

iv. Sworn (Notarized) No Overdue Tax Debt Certification (G.S. 143C-6-23.(c)) 

v. Procurement policy 

6. Compliance 

RECIPIENT shall comply with applicable federal, state, local and/or tribal statutes, regulations, 

ordinances, licensing requirements, policies, guidelines, reporting requirements, certifications and other 

regulatory matters for the conduct of its business and purchase requirements performed under this MOA.  

RECIPIENT shall be wholly responsible for the purchases made under this MOA and for the supervision 

of its employees and assistants.  

Failure to comply with the specified terms and conditions of this MOA may result in the return of funds 

and any other remedy for noncompliance specified in 2 CFR 200.339 (incorporated by reference in this 

MOA), and/or termination of the award per 09 NCAC 03M.0801 and 2 CFR 200.340 (incorporated by 

reference in this MOA).  Additional conditions may also be placed on RECIPIENT for noncompliance 

with the specified terms and conditions of this MOA, including (but not limited to) additional monitoring 

and possible placement of RECIPIENT on the Suspension of Funding List (SOFL) maintained by the 

State Office of State Budget & Management (OSBM). 

7. Responsibilities 

GRANTOR: 

A. GRANTOR shall provide funding to RECIPIENT to perform the activities as described herein.  

B. GRANTOR shall conduct a review of the project to ensure that it is in accordance with all grant 

requirements.  

RECIPIENT: 

A. This MOA must be signed and returned to GRANTOR within 45 days after RECIPIENT receives 

notice of this award.   

B. RECIPIENT understands and acknowledges required compliance with all statutory provisions 

outlined in N.C.G.S. 143C-6-23 (State grant funds: administration; oversight and reporting 

requirements) and 09 NCAC 03M .0205 (MINIMUM REPORTING REQUIREMENTS FOR 

RECIPIENTS).  

C. Requests for Reimbursement (RFR).  GRANTOR will reimburse RECIPIENT for eligible costs as 

discussed in Attachment 2: Allowable expenditures. RECIPIENT must take possession of all 

purchased items and receive any grant-eligible service prior to seeking reimbursement from the 

GRANTOR. RECIPIENT must submit request for reimbursement within 60 days of payment of 

invoice.  RFR submitted more than 30 days after RECIPIENT payment of invoice may be denied.  

RFR must include sufficient documentation that approved expenditures have been properly invoiced 

and paid by RECIPIENT, and that the products and/or services have in fact been received by 

RECIPIENT.  RFRs must be submitted using a cost report form (provided by GRANTOR) and a 

summary listing of invoices completed by RECIPIENT.  See paragraph 4 above. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: DDC03F80-7B43-4226-AB09-8265C17C2E08

mailto:hazmatgrants@ncdps.gov
https://www.osbm.nc.gov/stewardship-services/directed-grants#:~:text=What%20forms%20are%20directed%20grant%20recipients%20required%20to%20submit%3F
mailto:hazmatgrants@ncdps.gov
https://files.nc.gov/ncarts/docs/State%20of%20North%20Carolina%20Sub%20W-9_Version%209_Final.pdf
http://reports.oah.state.nc.us/ncac/title%2009%20-%20governor%20and%20lt.%20governor/chapter%2003%20-%20state%20budget%20and%20management/subchapter%20m/09%20ncac%2003m%20.0202.pdf
https://ncadmin.nc.gov/vendor-electronic-payment-form
http://reports.oah.state.nc.us/ncac/title%2009%20-%20governor%20and%20lt.%20governor/chapter%2003%20-%20state%20budget%20and%20management/subchapter%20m/09%20ncac%2003m%20.0202.pdf
https://www.ncleg.net/enactedlegislation/statutes/html/bysection/chapter_143c/gs_143c-6-23.html
https://files.nc.gov/ncdps/documents/files/100-Certification-of-No-Overdue-Tax-Debt.pdf
https://www.ncleg.gov/EnactedLegislation/Statutes/HTML/BySection/Chapter_143C/GS_143C-6-23.html
https://www.osbm.nc.gov/stewardship-services/grants-management-system/suspension-funding-memos
https://www.osbm.nc.gov/stewardship-services/grants-management-system


For Official Use Only 

  
Tier II Competitive Grant 2024  Page 4 of 9 

D. Funds Management.  RECIPIENT agrees that funds paid through this grant shall be accounted for in a 

separate fund and accounting structure within RECIPIENT’s central accounting and grant 

management system.  RECIPIENT agrees to manage all accounts payable disbursements, check 

register disbursements and related transactions in a detailed manner that supports fully transparent 

accounting of all financial transactions associated with the funding for this grant.    

i. Expenditures for travel mileage, meals, lodging and other travel expenses incurred in the 

performance of this grant shall be reasonable and supported by documentation.  State rates should 

be used as guidelines. International travel shall not be eligible under this MOA.  

ii. If eligible, RECIPIENT shall: (a) ask the North Carolina Department of Revenue for a refund of 

all sales and use taxes paid by them in the performance of this grant, pursuant to N.C.G.S. 105-

164.14; and (b) exclude all refundable sales and use taxes from all reported expenditures. 

E. Closeout Reporting Requirements.  Following the principles of 2 CFR 200.344, RECIPIENT must 

submit to GRANTOR, no later than 30 calendar days after the end date of the period of performance, 

all financial, performance, and other reports as required by the terms and conditions of the grant 

award and this MOA. This includes, but is not limited to, copies of after-action reports, including 

class roster, from any training or exercises funded by this grant.  It also includes copies of any 

deliverables purchased with these grant funds such as plan rewrites, commodity flow studies, and 

HazMat risk assessments.  GRANTOR notifies RECIPIENT upon completion of grant closeout. 

This includes, at a minimum: 

i. A complete accounting of how all grant funds were used. 

ii. A Certification stating the funds were used for the purpose appropriated. 

iii. A closeout letter indicating that the approved scope of work is complete. 

iv. Any other closeout documentation requested by GRANTOR. 

v. RECIPIENT agrees that all program activity results information reported shall be subject to 

review and authentication and RECIPIENT will provide access to work papers, receipts, invoices 

and reporting records, if requested by GRANTOR, as GRANTOR executes any audit internal 

audit responsibilities. 

vi. Once the complete final performance and financial status report package has been received and 

evaluated by GRANTOR, RECIPIENT will receive official notification of MOA close-out from 

GRANTOR.  

vii. The notification will inform RECIPIENT that GRANTOR is officially closing the MOA and 

retaining all MOA files and related material for a period of five (5) years or until all audit 

exceptions have been resolved, whichever is longer. 

F. Procurement. RECIPIENT shall utilize State of North Carolina and/or local procurement policies and 

procedures for the expenditure of funds, and conform to applicable state standards identified in 

N.C.G.S. Chapter 143, Article 3, Purchases & Contracts. 

If RECIPIENT utilizes local procurement policies, RECIPIENT is required to submit a copy of the 

applicable policies they followed and demonstrate that they complied with those policies, including 

competition as required. 

 RECIPIENT is required to check the federal System for Awards Management (SAM), 

https://sam.gov/content/exclusions and the State Debarred Vendors Listing, 

https://ncadmin.nc.gov/documents/nc-debarred-vendors, to verify that all vendors and contractors 

have not been suspended or debarred from doing business with the federal or state government. 

Per 09 NCAC 03M, agencies shall not disburse any state financial assistance to an entity that is on 

the Suspension of Funding List (SOFL).  OSBM maintains the SOFL for non-compliant grant 

RECIPIENTs. The SOFL is updated on a weekly basis.  RECIPIENT is prohibited under this MOA 

from procurement, and/or contracting with any entity listed on the SOFL using these grant funds. 

G. RECIPIENT shall have sole responsibility for the ownership, maintenance, insurance, upkeep, and 

replacement of any items procured pursuant to this MOA. Unless otherwise directed by GRANTOR, 

DocuSign Envelope ID: DDC03F80-7B43-4226-AB09-8265C17C2E08

https://www.ncleg.net/EnactedLegislation/Statutes/HTML/ByArticle/Chapter_143/Article_3.html
https://sam.gov/content/exclusions
https://ncadmin.nc.gov/documents/nc-debarred-vendors
https://www.osbm.nc.gov/stewardship-services/grants-management-system/suspension-funding-memos


For Official Use Only 

  
Tier II Competitive Grant 2024  Page 5 of 9 

RECIPIENT may keep or dispose of any items purchased with grant funds when the items are no 

longer needed by RECIPIENT.  

H. Property and Equipment.  Property and equipment purchased with these grant funds shall be titled to 

RECIPIENT, and RECIPIENT shall be responsible for the custody and care of any property and 

equipment purchased with grant funds furnished for use in connection with this MOA.  GRANTOR 

will not be held responsible for any property purchased under this MOA. RECIPIENT must utilize all 

property and equipment as intended in their project application to GRANTOR. 

I. Indirect Costs.  No indirect costs will be charged to this award. 

J. The purchase or acquisition of any additional materials, equipment, accessories or supplies, or the 

provision of any training, exercise or work activities beyond that identified in this MOA, shall be the 

sole responsibility of RECIPIENT and shall not be reimbursed under this MOA. 

K. Conflict of Interest.  Per N.C.G.S. § 143C-6-23(b),  RECIPIENT is required to file with GRANTOR a 

copy of RECIPIENT’s policy addressing conflicts of interest that may arise involving the grantee's 

management employees and the members of its board of directors or other governing body. The 

policy shall address situations in which any of these individuals may directly or indirectly benefit, 

except as the grantee's employees or members of its board or other governing body, from the grantee's 

disbursing of State funds, and shall include actions to be taken by the grantee or the individual, or 

both, to avoid conflicts of interest and the appearance of impropriety. The policy shall be filed 

before GRANTOR may disburse any grant funds.  

In conjunction with providing the conflict-of-interest policy to GRANTOR, RECIPIENT must 

disclose in writing to GRANTOR, and attempt to avoid, any real or potential conflict of interest that 

may arise during the administration of this grant award.    

This includes RECIPIENT’s responsibility to maintain written standards of conduct covering 

conflicts of interest and governing the actions of their employees engaged in the selection, award, and 

administration of contracts or subgrants. No employee, officer, or agent may participate in the 

selection, award, or administration of a contract or subgrant supported by this grant award if he or she 

has a real or apparent conflict of interest. Such conflicts of interest would arise when the employee, 

officer, or agent, any member of his or her immediate family, his or her partner, or an organization 

that employs or is about to employ any of the parties indicated herein, has a financial or other interest 

in or a tangible personal benefit from a firm considered for a contract or subgrant. The officers, 

employees, and agents of RECIPIENT may neither solicit nor accept gratuities, favors, or anything of 

monetary value from contractors or parties to subcontracts or subgrants. RECIPIENT may set 

standards for situations in which the financial interest is not substantial, or the gift is an unsolicited 

item of nominal value.  

The standards of conduct must provide for disciplinary actions to be applied for violations of such 

standards by officers, employees, or agents of RECIPIENT. RECIPIENT must disclose violations in 

writing to GRANTOR, and attempt to avoid, any real or potential conflicts of interest with respect to 

procurement, contracting, and subcontracting with funds provided under this grant award.  Upon 

request, RECIPIENT must also provide a copy of their standards of conduct policy covering conflicts 

of interest with respect to procurement, contracting and subcontracting with funds provided under this 

grant award. 

L. Travel.  RECIPIENT must have an acceptable local travel regulation plan or accept the state travel 

regulations.  

M. Records Retention for Auditing & Monitoring.  RECIPIENT acknowledges and agrees that, from and 

after the date of execution of this MOA and for five (5) years following its termination, the books, 

records, documents and facilities of RECIPIENT are subject to being audited, inspected and 

monitored at any time by GRANTOR upon its request (whether in writing or otherwise).  

RECIPIENT further agrees to provide GRANTOR staff and staff of the Office of State Auditor with 

DocuSign Envelope ID: DDC03F80-7B43-4226-AB09-8265C17C2E08

https://www.ncleg.net/enactedlegislation/statutes/html/bysection/chapter_143c/gs_143c-6-23.html#:~:text=(b)%C2%A0%C2%A0%C2%A0%C2%A0%C2%A0%C2%A0%C2%A0%20Conflict%20of%20Interest%20Policy.


For Official Use Only 

  
Tier II Competitive Grant 2024  Page 6 of 9 

access to financial and accounting records to support internal audit, financial reporting and related 

requirements. 

N. Advertising.  RECIPIENT agrees not to use the existence of this grant award or the name of 

GRANTOR as part of any commercial advertising, without prior written approval of GRANTOR. 

8. Regulation   
The funds awarded under this grant must be used in compliance with all applicable state and federal laws 

to include compliance with N.C.G.S. §§ 143C-6-22, 143C-6-23 and 09 NCAC 03M. By accepting this 

payment, RECIPIENT agrees to use these funds in a manner consistent with state and federal laws and 

regulations. 

9. Taxes 
RECIPIENT shall be considered to be an independent RECIPIENT and as such shall be responsible 

for ALL taxes. There shall be no reimbursement for taxes incurred by RECIPIENT under this grant. 

If eligible, RECIPIENT shall: (a) ask the North Carolina Department of Revenue for a refund of all sales 

and use taxes paid by them in the performance of this grant, pursuant to N.C.G.S. 105-164.14; and (b) 

exclude all refundable sales and use taxes from all reported expenditures. 

10. Warranty 
As an independent recipient, RECIPIENT will hold GRANTOR harmless for any liability and personal 

injury that may occur from or in connection with the performance of this MOA to the extent permitted by 

the North Carolina Tort Claims Act. Nothing in this MOA, express or implied, is intended to confer on 

any other person any rights or remedies in or by reason of this MOA. This MOA does not give any person 

or entity other than the parties hereto any legal or equitable claim, right or remedy. This MOA is intended 

for the sole and exclusive benefit of the parties hereto. This MOA is not made for the benefit of any third 

person or persons. No third party may enforce any part of this MOA or shall have any rights hereunder. 

This MOA does not create, and shall not be construed as creating, any rights enforceable by any person 

not a party to this MOA. Nothing herein shall be construed as a waiver of the sovereign immunity of the 

State of North Carolina. Nothing in this MOA is intended to conflict with current laws or regulations of 

the State of North Carolina, Department of Public Safety, North Carolina Emergency Management, or 

RECIPIENT. If a term of this MOA is inconsistent with such authority, then that term shall be invalid, but 

the remaining terms and conditions of this MOA shall remain in full force and effect. 

11. Audit requirements 

Per 09 NCAC 03M.0205, a non-state entity that is not exempt from the requirements of SUBCHAPTER 

03M – UNIFORM ADMINISTRATION OF STATE AWARDS OF FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE per 09 

NCAC 03M.0201, that receives a combined $500,000 or more in North Carolina state funding or federal 

funding passed through a state agency must within 9 months of the non-state entity’s fiscal year end 

submit to DPS Internal Audit (AuditGrantsReport@ncdps.gov) a single audit prepared and completed in 

accordance with Generally Accepted Government Auditing Standards (GAGAS): 

https://www.gao.gov/yellowbook. 

If RECIPIENT is a unit of local government in North Carolina, RECIPIENT may be subject to the audit 

and reporting requirements in N.C.G.S. 159-34, Local Government Finance Act – Annual Independent 

Audit, rules and regulations.  Such audit and reporting requirements are set by the Local Government 

Commission (see Local Government Commission for more information).  See also 20 NCAC 03 (Local 

Government Commission). Government entities including counties and local governments are 

generally subject to the audit requirements of the Local Government Commission.  

12. Points of contact 
To provide consistent and effective communication between GRANTOR and RECIPIENT, each party 

shall appoint a Principal Representative(s) to serve as its central point of contact responsible for 

coordinating and implementing this MOA. The Department of Public Safety, North Carolina Emergency 

Management contacts shall be State Hazardous Materials Manager, Grants Management Branch staff, and 

NCEM Field Branch staff.  RECIPIENT’s contact shall be the person(s) designated by the RECIPIENT. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: DDC03F80-7B43-4226-AB09-8265C17C2E08

https://ncleg.net/EnactedLegislation/Statutes/HTML/BySection/Chapter_105/GS_105-164.14.html
mailto:AuditGrantsReport@ncdps.gov
https://www.gao.gov/yellowbook
https://www.ncleg.gov/EnactedLegislation/Statutes/PDF/BySection/Chapter_159/GS_159-34.pdf
https://www.nctreasurer.com/divisions/state-and-local-government-finance/local-government-commission
http://reports.oah.state.nc.us/ncac.asp?folderName=%5CTitle%2020%20-%20State%20Treasurer%5CChapter%2003%20-%20Local%20Government%20Commission


For Official Use Only 

  
Tier II Competitive Grant 2024  Page 7 of 9 

13. Public records access 
Information maintained by RECIPIENT in connection with this MOA and grant award is subject to the 

North Carolina Public Records Act, Chapter 132 of the North Carolina General Statutes and is subject to 

public records requests through NCDPS. 

14. Contracting/subcontracting 

If RECIPIENT contracts/subcontracts any or all purchases or services under this MOA, then RECIPIENT 

agrees to include in the contract/subcontract agreement that the contractor/subcontractor is bound by the 

terms and conditions of this MOA.  RECIPIENT and any contractor/subcontractor agree to include in the 

contract/subcontract that the contractor/subcontractor shall hold GRANTOR harmless against all claims 

of whatever nature arising out of the contractor/subcontractor performance of work under this MOA.  If 

RECIPIENT contracts/subcontracts any or all purchases or services required under this MOA, a 

copy of the executed contract/subcontract agreement must be forwarded to GRANTOR. A 

contractual arrangement shall in no way relieve RECIPIENT of its responsibilities to ensure that all funds 

issued pursuant to this grant be administered in accordance with all state and federal requirements. 

RECIPIENT shall remain an independent recipient and as such shall be wholly responsible for the scope 

of work to be performed under this MOA and for the supervision of their employees and assistants.  

RECIPIENT represents that it has, or will secure at its own expense, all personnel required in performing 

the services under this MOA.  Such employees shall not be employees of, or have any individual 

contractual relationship with, GRANTOR.  RECIPIENT shall be responsible for compliance with all 

laws, ordinances, codes, rules, regulations, licensing requirements and other regulatory matters that are 

applicable to the conduct of his business and work performance under this MOA, including those of 

federal, state, and local agencies having appropriate jurisdiction. 

RECIPIENT acknowledges and agrees that, in its conduct under this Contract and in connection with all 

expenditures of grant funds made by it, it shall comply with the cost principles enunciated in the Code of 

Federal Regulations, 2 CFR, Part 200.   

15. Situs 
This MOA shall be governed by the laws of North Carolina and any claim for breach or enforcement shall 

be filed in State Court in Wake County, North Carolina. 

16. Antitrust laws 
All signatories of this MOA will comply with all applicable state and federal antitrust laws. 

17. Other provisions/severability 
Nothing in this MOA is intended to conflict with current federal, state, local, or tribal laws or regulations. 

If a term of this MOA is inconsistent with such authority, then that term shall be invalid, but the 

remaining terms and conditions of this MOA shall remain in full force and effect. 

18. Entire agreement 
This MOA and any annexes, exhibits and amendments annexed hereto and any documents incorporated 

specifically by reference represent the entire agreement between the parties and supersede all prior oral 

and written statements or agreements.  

19. Modification 
This MOA may be amended only by written amendments duly executed by RECIPIENT and GRANTOR. 

20. Termination 
The terms of this MOA, as modified with the consent of all parties, will remain in effect until the end of 

the POP.  Any grant funds not expended by the end of the POP will be automatically deobligated.  Prior 

to the end of the POP, either party may terminate this MOA upon thirty (30) days advance written notice 

to the other party.   

The POP may only be extended upon approval by NCEM Hazardous Materials Group and the issuance of 

the Grant Adjustment Notice. 

21. Terms of agreement 

DocuSign Envelope ID: DDC03F80-7B43-4226-AB09-8265C17C2E08

https://www.ncleg.net/EnactedLegislation/Statutes/HTML/ByChapter/Chapter_132.html
https://www.ncdps.gov/contact/public-records-requests


For Official Use Only 

  
Tier II Competitive Grant 2024  Page 8 of 9 

This MOA shall be effective upon return of execution from RECIPIENT and final approval by 

GRANTOR.  Upon final approval of this MOA by GRANTOR, the POP for this grant is January 1, 2023 

– January 31, 2024. 

Regardless of actual execution date, this MOA shall be in effect from the start of the POP to the end of 

the POP. 

22. Certification of eligibility - Under the Iran Divestment Act 
Pursuant to N.C.G.S. §147-86.59, any person identified as engaging in investment activities in Iran, 

determined by appearing on the Final Divestment List created by the State Treasurer pursuant to N.C.G.S. 

§ 147-86.58, is ineligible to contract with the State of North Carolina or any political subdivision of the 

State. The Iran Divestment Act of 2015, N.C.G.S. § 147-86.55 et seq.* requires that each vendor, prior to 

contracting with the State certifies, and the undersigned on behalf of the Vendor does hereby certify, to 

the following: 

A. That the vendor is not identified on the Final Divestment List of entities that the State Treasurer has 

determined engages in investment activities in Iran 

B. That the vendor shall not utilize on any contract with the State agency any subcontractor that is 

identified on the Final Divestment List 

C. That the undersigned is authorized by the Vendor to make this Certification. 

The State Treasurer’s Final Divestment List can be found on the State Treasurer’s website at the address: 

https://www.nctreasurer.com/inside-the-department/OpenGovernment/Pages/Iran-divestment-Act-

resources.aspx and will be updated every 180 days. For questions about the Department of State 

Treasurer’s Iran Divestment Policy, direct questions to (919) 814-4000. 

23. Attachments 
All attachments to this MOA are incorporated as if set out fully herein. 

In the event of any inconsistency or conflict between the language of this MOA and the attachment 

hereto, the language of the MOA shall be controlling, but only to the extent of such conflict or 

inconsistency. 

This MOA includes the following attachments: 

 Approved application as Attachment 1. 

 Allowable expenditures as Attachment 2. 

DocuSign Envelope ID: DDC03F80-7B43-4226-AB09-8265C17C2E08

https://www.nctreasurer.com/inside-the-department/OpenGovernment/Pages/Iran-divestment-Act-resources.aspx
https://www.nctreasurer.com/inside-the-department/OpenGovernment/Pages/Iran-divestment-Act-resources.aspx


For Official Use Only 

  
Tier II Competitive Grant 2024  Page 9 of 9 

AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE WARRANTY 

THE UNDERSIGNED REPRESENT AND WARRANT THAT THEY ARE AUTHORIZED TO BIND 

THEIR PRINCIPALS TO THE TERMS OF THIS MOA.  IN WITNESS WHEREOF, GRANTOR AND 

RECIPIENT HAVE EACH EXECUTED THIS MOA AND THE PARTIES AGREE THAT THE MOA 

IS EFFECTIVE AS OF THE POP START DATE, EVEN IF THIS MOA IS SIGNED BY ANY 

PARTIES AFTER THAT DATE. 

For GRANTOR: 

   

By: ________________________________ 

William C. Ray, Director & Deputy 

Homeland Security Advisor 

North Carolina Department of Public Safety 

Division of Emergency Management 

Date: __________________ 

 

For RECIPIENT:  

   

By: ________________________________ Date: __________________ 

By: ________________________________ Date: __________________ 

By: ________________________________ Date: __________________ 

 

Approved as to Form: 

By: ________________________________ 

William Polk, Deputy General Counsel 

Reviewed for the North Carolina 

Department of Public Safety to fulfill the 

purposes of the DHS Homeland Security 

Grant Program 

Date: __________________ 

 

DocuSign Envelope ID: DDC03F80-7B43-4226-AB09-8265C17C2E08

4/22/2024 | 14:51:38 EDT

4/23/2024 | 10:28:16 EDT

4/24/2024 | 08:05:17 EDT

4/24/2024 | 16:38:42 EDT



BA #     Duplin County

Budget Amendment

Department Title

Department Head's Signature

 (form can be e-mailed to Finance from Dept. Head)

All amendments involving revenues must be approved by the Board of Commissioners

Brief description of why this amendment is being requested:

Revenue 

code Line Item Description Amount

Expense 

code Line Item Description Amount

4330-34352 NC Tier II Noncompetitive Grant 2,500.00 4330-41990 Professional Services 2,500.00

Total 2,500.00 Total 2,500.00

Finance Signature

Date Approved:

Manager Signature

Date Approved:

Commisioner Approval

Date Approved:

7/12/2024

Emergency Management

BSMJ

NC Emergency Management Tier II grant for hazardous materials allocated to pay for a hazardous materials response plan.



County Commissioners 

Agenda Request Form 
 

Complete and submit this form along with any supporting documentation to request time on the 

county commissioner’s agenda.  This is not required for items included on the consent agenda. 
 

Name / Department:  TAX ADMINISTRATION Meeting Date:  JULY 15, 2024 

Subject: Reappointment of Tax Assessor, Assistant Tax Assessor, Tax Collector, Deputy Tax Collectors 

Summary, explanation and background.   These appointments are for a term of four years and the last appointments 

were in 2020. 

Requested Action:  Hopefully Reappoint Gary M. Rose as Tax Assessor and as Tax Collector. 

                                                 Reappoint Joan N. Barnette as Assistant Tax Assessor and as Deputy Tax Collector. 

                                                 Reappoint Barbara Gail Summerlin as Deputy Tax Collector. 

Budget impact for this fiscal year: (Funds available, allocation needed, etc.)  

 

Budget impact for subsequent years: (Funds available, allocation needed, etc.)   

 

Time needed to explain to Commissioners: Five to ten minutes. 

Attachments:   

 

Instructions for what to do with attachments once approved: 

 

Note: Please have all signatures on any contracts, agreements, etc. prior to board meeting and give all copies to 

Jaime Carr by the agenda deadline. Remember, one original will be retained for the minutes 

jaime.carr
Agenda



County Commissioners 

Agenda Request Form 
 

Complete and submit this form along with any supporting documentation to request time on the 

county commissioner’s agenda.  This is not required for items included on the consent agenda. 
 

Name / Department:  TAX ADMINISTRATION Meeting Date:  JULY 15, 2024 

Subject: “ORDER OF COLLECTION” 

Summary, explanation and background: The board of county commissioners is required to adopt an order directing 

and empowering the tax collector to collect taxes.  GS 105-321(b) 

Requested Action: Approve the order. 

 

Budget impact for this fiscal year: (Funds available, allocation needed, etc.)  

 

Budget impact for subsequent years: (Funds available, allocation needed, etc.)   

 

Time needed to explain to Commissioners: Five to ten minutes. 

Attachments:   

 

Instructions for what to do with attachments once approved: 

 

Note: Please have all signatures on any contracts, agreements, etc. prior to board meeting and give all copies to 

Jaime Carr by the agenda deadline. Remember, one original will be retained for the minutes 

jaime.carr
Agenda



 

State of North Carolina 

 

County of Duplin  

 

To:  Gary M. Rose, Duplin County Tax Collector 

 

You are hereby authorized, empowered, and commanded to collect the taxes set forth in the tax records filed in the  

office of Duplin County and in the tax receipts herewith delivered to you, in the amounts and from the taxpayers  

likewise therein set forth.  Such taxes are hereby declared to be a first lien upon all real property of the respective  

taxpayers in the County of Duplin, and this order shall be a full and sufficient authority to direct, require and enable you  

to levy on and sell any real or personal property of such taxpayers, for and on account thereof, in accordance with law. 

 

 

 

Witness my hand and official seal this 15th day of July, 2024. 

 

 

________________________________________________(Seal) 

Chairman, Board of Commissioners of Duplin County 

 

Attest: 

 

________________________________________________ 

Clerk of Board of Commissioners of Duplin County 

 

 

 



County Commissioners 

Agenda Request Form 
 

Complete and submit this form along with any supporting documentation to request time on the 

county commissioner’s agenda.  This is not required for items included on the consent agenda. 
 

Name / Department:   

         TAX ADMINISTRATION 

Meeting Date:  

     July 15, 2024 

Subject:  Duplin County Review Officer for plats and maps 

Summary, explanation and background:  The county is required to have review officers to review and approve 

maps and plats before they are recorded in the Register of Deed’s Office.  This resolution will add a new person 

as Review Officer, correct the name of another Review Officer (name change due to marriage), and revoke all 

previous persons that have been appointed as Review Officer that no longer work for Duplin County. 

Requested Action:    Motion approving the resolution. 

Budget impact for this fiscal year: (Funds available, allocation needed, etc.)  

 

Budget impact for subsequent years: (Funds available, allocation needed, etc.)   

 

Time needed to explain to Commissioners: Five to ten minutes. 

Attachments:   

 

Instructions for what to do with attachments once approved: 

 

Note: Please have all signatures on any contracts, agreements, etc. prior to board meeting and give all copies to 

Jaime Carr by the agenda deadline. Remember, one original will be retained for the minutes 

jaime.carr
Agenda



 

 
 

RESOLUTION 2024-30 

 

County of Duplin  

Office of the County Commissioners 

 
 
 

RESOLUTION APPOINTING REVIEW OFFICERS 

 
 

WHEREAS, S.L. 1997-309 (S875) makes a number of significant changes in the procedures for the recording 

maps and plats; and 

 

 

WHEREAS, the main purpose of the law is to transfer the responsibility for reviewing plats to determine 

whether they meet recording requirements from the Register of Deeds to a Review Officer; and 

 

 

WHEREAS, G.S. 47-30.2 requires the Board of County commissioners in each County, by resolution, to 

appoint a person to serve as Review Officer to review each plat before it is recorded and certify that it meets the 

statutory requirements for recording; and 

 

 

WHEREAS, it is the desire of the Duplin County Board of Commissioners to insure an expeditious review of 

all maps and plats as required by G.S. 47-30.2 before they are presented to the Register of Deeds for recording. 

 

 

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, effective July 16, 2024, that Gary M. Rose, Tax Administrator of 

Duplin County, and Kaytlin Burgess, Carol Jackson, and Connor Wilkinson are hereby appointed to perform all 

responsibilities as required for Review Officer under the appropriate North Carolina General Statutes. 

 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that any other persons having been appointed Review Officer for Duplin 

County as required by G.S. 47-30.2, prior to this resolution, are no longer authorized to perform these 

responsibilities; and 

 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that a copy of this resolution, designation of Review Officer, be recorded in 

the Duplin County Register of Deeds Office and indexed in the name of the Review Officers. 

 

 

This is the 15th day of July, 2024. 

 

  

        ________________________   

        Dexter B. Edwards, Chairman 

        Duplin County Board of Commissioners 

 ATTEST: 

 

 __________________________    

 Jaime W. Carr 

 Clerk to the Board 



jaime.carr
Agenda





 

 
 

RESOLUTION 2024-29 

 

County of Duplin  

Office of the County Commissioners 

 
 
 

RESOLUTION BY THE COUNTY OF DUPLIN                                                                                          

AUTHORIZING EXECUTION OF KROGER OPIOID SETTLEMENT AND APPROVING THE 

SECOND SUPPLEMENTAL AGREEMENT FOR ADDITIONAL FUNDS 

 WHEREAS, the opioid overdose epidemic has taken the lives of more than 37,000 North Carolinians 

since 2000; and 

 WHEREAS, the COVID-19 pandemic has compounded the opioid overdose crisis, increasing levels of 

drug misuse, addiction, and overdose death; and 

 WHEREAS, the Centers for Disease Control and Prevention estimates the total economic burden of 

prescription opioid misuse alone in the United States is $78.5 billion a year, including the costs of healthcare, 

lost productivity, addiction treatment, and criminal justice involvement; and 

 WHEREAS, certain counties and municipalities in North Carolina joined with thousands of local 

governments across the country to file lawsuits against opioid manufacturers, pharmaceutical distribution 

companies, and chain drug stores to hold those companies accountable for their misconduct; and 

 WHEREAS, a settlement has been reached in litigation against the Kroger Co. (“Kroger”) as well as its 

subsidiaries, affiliates, officers, and directors named in the Kroger Settlement; and 

 WHEREAS, representatives of local North Carolina governments, the North Carolina Association of 

County Commissioners, and the North Carolina Department of Justice have negotiated and prepared a Second 

Supplemental Agreement for Additional Funds (SAAF-2) to provide for the equitable distribution of the 

proceeds of these settlements; and 

 WHEREAS, by joining the settlements and approving the SAAF-2, the state and local governments 

maximize North Carolina’s share of opioid settlement funds to ensure the needed resources reach communities, 

as quickly, effectively, and directly as possible; and 

 WHEREAS, it is advantageous to all North Carolinians for local governments, including Duplin 

County and its residents, to sign onto the settlements and SAAF-2 and demonstrate solidarity in response to the 

opioid overdose crisis, and to maximize the share of opioid settlement funds received both in the state and this 

county to help abate the harm; and 

 WHEREAS, the SAAF-2 directs substantial resources over multiple years to local governments on the 

front lines of the opioid overdose epidemic while ensuring that these resources are used in an effective way to 

address the crisis; 

 NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the Board of Commissioners of Duplin County hereby 

authorizes the County Manager or County Attorney to execute all documents necessary to enter into opioid 

settlement agreements with Kroger, to execute the SAAF-2, and to provide such documents to Rubris, the 

Implementation Administrator. 

 

Adopted this the 15th day of July 2024.    

        ________________________   

        Dexter B. Edwards, Chairman 

        Duplin County Board of Commissioners 

 ATTEST: 

 

 __________________________    

 Jaime W. Carr 

 Clerk to the Board 

jaime.carr
Agenda



jaime.carr
Agenda



























































































































































County Commissioners 

Agenda Request Form 
 

Complete and submit this form along with any supporting documentation to request time on the 

county commissioner’s agenda.  This is not required for items included on the consent agenda. 
 

Representative Name and Department:  Melissa Kennedy/ 911 

Addressing 

Meeting Date: 07/15/2024 

Subject:   Hold  Public Hearing in accordance of Duplin County 911 Addressing road naming 

Ordinance 

Summary, explanation and background:  Conduct public hearing for Ronald Kenan to name a lane 

at 900 block of Old Wilmington Rd Wallace- Island Creek Township- Ronald Ann Ln 

Requested Action:  To approve lane name- Ronald Ann Ln 

Budget impact for this fiscal year:   

Budget impact for subsequent years:   

Time needed to explain to Commissioners: 2 mintues 

Attachments:   

 

jaime.carr
Agenda



 



 



 

 

 

Instructions for what to do with attachments once approved: 

 

 

Note: Please have all signatures on any contracts, agreements, etc. prior to board meeting and give all copies to 

Trisha-Ann Hoskins by the agenda deadline. Remember, one original will be retained for the minutes. 



County Commissioners 

Agenda Request Form 
 

Complete and submit this form along with any supporting documentation to request time on the 

county commissioner’s agenda.  This is not required for items included on the consent agenda. 
 

Name / Department:  EMS Meeting Date:  7/15/2024 

Subject: Private Ambulance Franchise 

Summary, explanation and background: Stellar Med is requesting a private ambulance transport franchise within Duplin 

County. This will allow Stellar Med to transport inside of Duplin County. We currently have 2 companies now, but due to staffing 

shortages are unable to keep up with demand of private transports.  

Requested Action: To accept and sign the Private Ambulance Franchise. 

Budget impact for this fiscal year: (Funds available, allocation needed, etc.)  None 

 

Budget impact for subsequent years: (Funds available, allocation needed, etc.) None 

Time needed to explain to Commissioners: 5 minutes 

Attachments:  Stellar Med ambulance package and ambulance franchise agreement 

Instructions for what to do with attachments once approved: Send signed agreement back over to  

 

Note: Please have all signatures on any contracts, agreements, etc. prior to board meeting and give all copies to Jaime 

Carr by the agenda deadline. Remember, one original will be retained for the minutes. 

jaime.carr
Agenda







 DUPLIN COUNTY 

AN ORDINANCE REGULATING AMBULANCE SERVICE AND GRANTING  

 OF FRANCHISES TO AMBULANCE OPERATORS 

 
 

 

 An ordinance governing the granting of franchises for ambulance services and other pre-

hospital emergency medical services.  The County of Duplin Board of Commissioners does ordain 

the following: 

 

SECTION I. DEFINITIONS 

 

Unless the context otherwise requires, the following definitions shall apply in the interpretation and 

enforcement of this ordinance: 

 

1.1  AMBULANCE 

 

  The term "Ambulance" means any privately or publicly owned motor vehicle, 

aircraft, or vessel that is specially designed, constructed, or modified and equipped 

and is intended to be used for and is maintained or operated for the transportation on 

the streets or highways, waterways or airways of this State of persons who are sick, 

injured, wounded, or otherwise incapacitated and helpless. 

 

1.2  AMBULANCE ATTENDANT 

 

  The term "Ambulance Attendant" means an individual who has completed a training 

program in emergency medical care and first aid approved by the North Carolina 

Department of Human Resources and has been certified as an ambulance attendant 

by the Department of Human Resources, Office of Emergency Medical Services. 

 

1.3  EMERGENCY MEDICAL TECHNICIAN 

 

  The term "Emergency Medical Technician" means an individual who has completed 

a training program in emergency medical care at least equal to the National Standard 

Training Program for Emergency Medical Technicians as defined by the United 

States Department of Transportation and has been certified as an Emergency 

Medical Technician by the Department. 

 

1.4  AMBULANCE PROVIDER 

  

  The term "Ambulance Provider" means an individual, firm, corporation or 

association who engages or professes to engage in the business or service of 

transporting patients in an ambulance. 

 

1.5  APPROVED 



 

  The term "Approved" shall mean approved by the North Carolina Medical Care 

Commission pursuant to the latter's rules and regulations promulgated under N. C. 

General Statutes 143B-165. 

 

1.6  SECONDARY AMBULANCE PROVIDER 

 

   The term "Secondary Ambulance Provider" shall mean the system of personnel and 

equipment meeting the same criteria as a primary ambulance provider, but not 

normally dispatched on first call response. 

 

1.7  COUNTY 

 

  The term "county" shall mean the County of Duplin Board of Commissioners or 

their designated representative. 

 

1.8  DISPATCHER 

 

  The term "Dispatcher" shall mean a person who is available at all times to receive 

requests for emergency services, to dispatch emergency services, and to advise local 

law enforcement agencies and emergency medical facilities of any existing or 

threatened emergency. 

 

1.9  EMERGENCY 

 

  The terms "Emergency" and "Emergency Transportation Service" shall mean the use 

of an ambulance, its equipment and personnel to provide medical care and 

transportation of a patient who is in need of immediate medical treatment in order to 

prevent loss of life or further aggravation or physiological or psychological illness or 

injury. 

 

1.10  FIRST RESPONDER 

 

  The term "First Responder" shall mean an organization with personnel trained in 

emergency medical care that is dispatched to the scene of a medical emergency for 

the primary purpose of providing emergency medical assistance to a patient until the 

ambulance and additional medical aid arrives. 

 

1.11  FRANCHISE 

 

  The term "Franchise" shall mean a permit issued by the County to a person for the 

operation of an ambulance service. 

 

1.12  FRANCHISEE 

 

  The term "franchisee" shall mean any person having been issued a franchise by the 



County for the operation of an ambulance service. 

 

1.13  LICENSE 

 

  The term "License" shall mean any driver's license or permit to operate a motor 

vehicle issued under or granted by the laws of the State of North Carolina. 

 

 

1.14  NON-EMERGENCY TRANSPORTATION SERVICES 

 

  The term "Non-Emergency Transportation Service" shall mean the operation of an 

ambulance for any purpose other than transporting emergency patients. 

 

1.15  OPERATOR 

 

  The term "Operator" shall mean a person in actual physical control of an ambulance 

which is in motion or which has the engine running. 

 

1.16  OWNER 

 

  The term "Owner" shall mean a person or entity who owns an ambulance. 

 

1.17  PATIENT 

 

  The term "Patient" means an individual who is sick, injured, wounded, or otherwise 

incapacitated or helpless such that the need for some medical assistance might be 

anticipated while being transported to or from a medical facility. 

 

1.18  PERSON 

 

  The term "Person" shall mean any individual, firm, partnership, association, 

corporation, company, group of individuals acting together for a common purpose, 

or organization of any kind, including, any governmental agency other than the 

United States. 

 

1.19  RESCUE 

 

  The term "Rescue" shall mean situations where the victim cannot escape an area 

through the normal exit or under his own power. 

 

 

SECTION II. FRANCHISE REQUIRED 

 

2.1  No person either as owner, agent or otherwise, shall furnish, operate, conduct, 

maintain, advertise, or otherwise be engaged in or profess to be engaged in the 

business or service of emergency and /or non-emergency transportation of patients 



within the County of Duplin unless the person holds a valid permit for each 

ambulance used in such business or service issued by the North Carolina 

Department of Human Resources, Office of Emergency Medical Services, and has 

been granted a franchise for the operation of such business or service by the County 

pursuant to this Ordinance. 

 

2.2  No person shall drive an ambulance, attend a patient in one, or permit one to be 

operated when transporting a patient within the County of Duplin unless he or she 

holds a currently valid certificate as an Medical Responder, Emergency Medical 

Technician, Emergency Medical Technician-Intermediate, or Emergency Medical 

Technician-Paramedic issued by the North Carolina Department of Human 

Resources, Office of Emergency Medical Service. 

 

2.3  NO FRANCHISE SHALL BE REQUIRED FOR: 

 

  (A) Any entity rendering assistance to a franchised ambulance service in the case 

of a major catastrophe, mutual aid or emergency with which the services 

franchised by the County of Duplin are insufficient or unable to cope; or, 

 

  (b) Any entity operated from a location or headquartered outside of the County 

of Duplin in order to transport patients who are picked up beyond the limits 

of the County of Duplin, to facilities located within the County of Duplin, or 

to pick up patients within the County of Duplin for transporting to locations 

outside the County of Duplin; or, 

 

  (c) Ambulances owned and operated by an agency of the United States 

Government. 

   

  (d) Ambulance transportation by a specialty care transport program operated 

by a hospital or Skilled Nursing facility that is physically located within 

the geographic limits of Duplin County. 

 

 

SECTION III. APPLICATION FOR AMBULANCE FRANCHISE 

 

3.1  Application for a franchise to operate ambulances in the County of Duplin shall be 

made by the ambulance provider upon such forms as may be prepared or prescribed 

by the County and shall contain: 

 

  (a) The name and address of the ambulance provider and the owner of the 

ambulances(s); 

 

  (b) The trade or other fictitious names, if any, under which the applicant does 

business, along with a certified copy of an assumed name certificate stating 

such name or articles of incorporation stating such name; 

 



  (c) A resume of the training and experience of the applicant in the transportation 

and care of patients; 

 

  (d) A full description of the type and level of service to be provided including 

the location of the place or places from which it is intended to operate, the 

manner in which the public will be able to obtain assistance and how the 

vehicles will be dispatched.  An audited financial statement of the applicant 

as the same pertains to the operations in the County of Duplin, said financial 

statement to be in such form and such detail as may be required by the 

County; 

 

  (e) A description of the applicant's capability to provide twenty-four (24) hour 

coverage, seven (7) days per week for the district covered by the franchise 

applied for, and an accurate estimate of the minimum and maximum times 

for a response to calls within such district; and 

 

  (f) Any information the county shall deem reasonable necessary for a fair 

determination of the capability of the applicant to provide ambulance 

services in the County of Duplin in accordance with the requirements of 

State Laws and the provisions of these regulations. 

 

SECTION IV.  GRANTING OF FRANCHISE 

 

4.1  Prior to accepting applications for the operation of an ambulance service, the Board 

of Commissioners may designate specific service areas as franchise districts.  Said 

districts will be established using criteria that includes: geographic size, road access, 

the location of existing medical transportation services, population, and response 

time.  The county shall have the authority to redistrict or rearrange existing districts 

at any time at their discretion.  

 

4.2  An applicant may apply for a franchise to operate either emergency transportation 

service or non-emergency transportation service or both.  If both types of service are 

to be provided, separate applications must be filed for each type. 

 

4.3  Upon receipt of an application for a franchise, the County shall schedule a time and 

place for hearing the applicant.  Within thirty (30) days after hearing, the County 

shall cause such investigation as it may deem necessary to be made of the applicant 

and his proposed operations. 

 

4.4  A franchise may be granted if the County finds that: 

 

  (a) The applicant shows a reasonable effort to meet state standards and 

standards outlined in the franchise ordinance. 

 

  (b) The proposed service will fit within the existing service so as not to 

adversely affect the level of services or operations of other franchises to 



render service. 

 

  (c) A need exists for the proposed service in order to improve the level of 

ambulance services available to residents of the county and that this is a 

reasonable and cost effective manner of meeting the need. 

 

4.5   The county may limit the number of ambulance franchises awarded consistent 

with the needs of the community. The county expressly reserves the right to 

amend, suspend, or revoke a franchise for any reason. 

 

SECTION V.  TERM OF FRANCHISE 

 

5.1  The County may issue a franchise hereunder to an ambulance provider, to be valid 

for a term to be determined by the county, provided that either party as its option, 

may terminate the franchise upon sixty (60) days prior written notice to the other 

party.  After a notice of service termination is given, the ambulance provider may 

reapply for a franchise if continued service is desired. 

 

5.2  Upon suspension, revocation, or termination of a franchise granted hereunder, such 

franchised ambulance service immediately shall cease operations.  Upon suspension, 

revocation or termination of a driver's license or Medical Responder's certificate, or 

Emergency Medical Technician certificate, such persons shall cease to drive an 

ambulance or provide medical care in conjunction with an ambulance service, or 

attend an ambulance.  The franchise shall not permit such an individual to drive an 

ambulance or provide medical care in conjunction with the ambulance service. 

 

5.3  Each franchised ambulance service shall comply at all times with the requirements 

of this ordinance, the franchise granted hereunder, and all applicable state and local 

laws relating to health, sanitation, safety, equipment, and ambulance design and all 

other laws and ordinances. 

 

5.4  Prior approval of the County shall be required where ownership or control of more 

than ten (10%) percent or more of such right of control, singularly or collectively, at 

the date of the franchise.  By its acceptance of the franchise, the franchisee 

specifically agrees that any such acquisition occurring without prior approval of the 

County shall constitute a violation of the franchise by the franchisee and shall be 

cause for termination at the option of the County. 

 

5.5  Any change of ownership of a franchised ambulance service without the approval of 

the County shall terminate the franchise and shall require a new application and a 

new franchise and conformance with all the requirements of this Ordinance as upon 

original franchising. 

 

5.6  No franchise may be sold, assigned, mortgaged, or otherwise transferred without the 

approval of the County; and a finding of conformance with all requirements of this 

ordinance as upon original franchising.  Each franchised ambulance service, its 



equipment and the premises designated in the application and all records relating to 

its maintenance and operation, as such, shall be open to inspection by the State, the 

county, or their designated representatives. 

 

5.7  A franchise may not be defaced, removed, or obliterated. 

 

 

 

SECTION VI.  STANDARDS FOR DRIVERS AND ATTENDANTS 

 

6.1  Standards for drivers and attendants as developed by the North Carolina Medical 

Care Commission as requirements for certification of ambulance attendants and 

emergency medical technician pursuant to Article 26, Chapter 130-233, and Article 

67, Chapter 143, of the General Statutes of North Carolina, and shall be applied and 

the same are incorporated herein by reference. 

 

SECTION VII.  STANDARDS FOR VEHICLES AND EQUIPMENT 

 

7.1  Vehicle and equipped standards as developed by the North Carolina Medical Care 

Commission pursuant to Article 26, Chapter 130, and Article 56, Chapter 143, of 

the General Statutes of North Carolina, and shall be applied and the same are 

incorporated herein by reference. 

 

SECTION VIII.  STANDARDS FOR COMMUNICATIONS 

 

8.1  Each ambulance vehicle shall be equipped with an operational two-way radio 

capable of establishing good quality voice communications from within the 

geographic confines of the County to each hospital(s) emergency department in the 

County in which the ambulance is based.  Each ambulance vehicle shall be equipped 

with two-way radio capable of establishing good quality voice communications 

from within the geographic confines of the county in which the ambulance 

dispatching agency within the County. 

 

8.2  Each ambulance provider shall maintain current authorizations of Federal 

Communication Commission licenses for all frequencies and radio transmitters 

operated by that provider.  Copies of all authorizations and licenses shall be on 

display and available for inspection per Federal Communication Commission's 

Rules and Regulations. 

 

8.3  Each base of operations must have at least one open telephone line.  Telephone 

numbers must be registered with each law enforcement agency and communication 

center in the County of Duplin. 

 

SECTION IX.  INSURANCE 

 

9.1  No ambulance franchise shall be issued under this Ordinance, nor shall such 



franchise be valid after issuance, nor shall any ambulance be operated in the County 

of Duplin unless the franchisee has at all times in force and effect insurance 

coverage, issued by an insurance company licensed to do business in the State of 

North Carolina, for each and every ambulance owned and or operated by or for the 

ambulance service providing for the payment of damages: 

 

  (a) In the sum of $1,000,000.00 for injury to or death of individuals in accidents 

resulting from any cause for which the owner of said vehicle would be liable 

on account of liability imposed on him by law, regardless of whether the 

ambulance was being driven by the owner or his agency; and,  

 

  (b) In the sum of $500,000.00 for the loss of or damage to the property of 

another, including personal property, under like circumstances, in sums as 

may be required by the State or as approved by the County of Duplin. 

 

  (c) Each ambulance provider shall have Workers' Compensation Insurance at all 

times as required by the State of North Carolina. 

 

SECTION X.  RECORDS 

 

10.1  Each franchisee shall maintain the following records: 

 

  (a) Record of Dispatch - shall show time call was received, time ambulance 

dispatched, time arrived on scene, time arrived at destination, time in 

service, and time returned to base. 

 

  (b) Trip Record - shall state all information required in Section (a) in addition to 

information on a form approved by the County.  The trip record shall be so 

designed as to provide the patient with a copy thereof containing all required 

information.  A copy of the trip record may serve as a receipt for any charges 

paid. 

 

SECTION XI.  RATES AND CHARGES 

 

11.1  Each franchisee shall submit a schedule of rates to the county for approval and shall 

not charge more nor less than the approved rates without specific approval by the 

County. 

 

11.2  No ambulance service shall attempt to collect rates on emergency calls until the 

patient has reached the point of destination, has received medical attention and is in 

a condition deemed by the physician fit to consult with the ambulance service, but 

such service may attempt to collect rates with family or guardian of the patient once 

the patient is in the process of receiving medical attention. 

 

11.3  On non-emergency calls, or calls where a person requires transportation to a non-

emergency facility, attempts to collect payment can be made before the ambulance 



begins its trip. 

 

 

SECTION XII.  ENFORCEMENT & VIOLATIONS OF ORDINANCE 

 

12.1  Enforcement. The Duplin County Emergency Medical Services Department 

(hereinafter the “Department”) shall be the enforcing agency for the regulation 

contained in this Ordinance.  Such office will: 

 

  (a) Receive all franchise proposals from potential Providers; 

 

  (b) Study each proposal for conformance to this Ordinance; 

 

  (c) Present any and franchise proposals from potential Providers to the Duplin 

County Board of County Commissioners with any recommendations from 

said Department;  

 

  (d) Award the franchises(s) to any and all approved Providers; 

 

  (e) Inspect the premises, vehicles, equipment, and personnel of franchisees to  

   assure compliance to this Ordinance and perform any other inspections that  

   may be required; 

 

  (f) Recommend to the Board of Commissioners the temporary or permanent 

suspension of a franchise in the event of noncompliance with the franchise 

terms of this Ordinance;   

 

  (g)  Recommend the imposition of civil penalties as provided therein; 

 

  (h) Insure by cooperative agreement with other ambulance services the 

continued service in a district where an ambulance service franchise has 

been suspended; 

 

  (i) Receive monthly reports from ambulance services and consolidate the same 

into a quarterly summary for review by the Department and the County; 

 

  (j) Receive and review complaints from the public, other enforcing agencies, 

and ambulance services regarding franchise infractions.   

 

  (k) Obtain corrective action for any violations of the franchise; 

 

  (l) Recommend improvements to the County which will insure better medical 

transportation; 

 

  (m) Maintain all records required by this Ordinance and other applicable County 

regulations; and 



 

  (n) Perform such of the above functions as may be requested by any 

municipality within the County of Duplin. 

 

12.2 Violations of Ordinance. 

 

1. Any act constituting a violation of the provisions of this Ordinance or a failure to 

comply with any of its requirements shall subject the offender to a civil penalty of 

$500.00. If the offender fails to remedy the violation and pay any civil penalty within 

ten (10) days after being cited for said violation (or within the time prescribed by a 

citation if it provides for a longer period of time than ten days), the civil penalty may 

be recovered in a civil action in the nature of a debt.  Civil penalties begin to accrue 

from the date of the first notice of violation. 

 

2. This Ordinance may also be enforced by any appropriate equitable action 

authorized by law, including injunctive relief, whether or not there is an adequate 

remedy at law. 

 

3. Each day that any violation continues, regardless of the date of notice, shall be 

considered a separate offense for purposes of the penalties and remedies specified in 

this section.  In such an event, civil penalties begin to accrue from the date of the first 

notice of violation. For continuing violations, the initial citation and requirement that 

the civil penalty be paid within the time prescribed therein shall be the only notice 

required to be given; and shall be deemed to be an on-going citation and notice for 

continuing violations after the date of the citation.  

 

4. Any one, all, or any combination of the foregoing penalties and remedies may be 

used to enforce this Ordinance. 

 

5. Violations of the provisions of this Ordinance or failure to comply with any of its 

requirements shall not constitute a misdemeanor as provided in N.C. Gen. Stat.§ 14-4, 

unless any specific penalty set forth elsewhere provides to the contrary. 

 

 

12.3   Alternatives for Enforcement. In addition to the provisions of this section, any 

provision of this Ordinance or other ordinance of the county may be enforced by any one 

or more of the remedies authorized by N.C. Gen. Stat. §153A-123, excluding 

misdemeanor charges as provided in N.C. Gen. Stat. § 14-4, unless any specific penalty 

set forth elsewhere provides to the contrary. 
 

 

SECTION XIII.  MISCELLANEOUS 

 

13.1  The County may inspect a franchisee's records, premises, and equipment at any time 

in order to insure compliance with this Ordinance and any franchise granted 

hereunder. 



 

 

SECTION XIV.  ADDENDUMS TO ORDINANCE 

 

14.1  The Board of Commissioner of the County of Duplin may, through appropriate 

actions, amend or expand this Ordinance to include other emergency departments or 

agencies as deemed necessary. 

 

SECTION XV.  EFFECTIVE DATE 

 

This Ordinance shall become effective and be in full force form and after the ________ day of 

______________, 201_.  Upon execution of this Ordinance any and all previous Ordinances 

Regulating Ambulance Franchises in Duplin County shall be automatically repealed. 

 

 

 

     s/____________________________________    

     Chairman 

      Duplin County Board of Commissioners 

 

 

 

 

ATTEST:  s/______________________________ 

     Clerk 

  

















































County Commissioners 

Agenda Request Form 
 

Complete and submit this form along with any supporting documentation to request time on the 

county commissioner’s agenda.  This is not required for items included on the consent agenda. 
 

Name / Department:  Laura C Jones/Library Meeting Date:  7/15/2024 

Subject  Accept LSTA Grant Funds for Story Walks 

Summary, explanation and background: The library has been awarded an LSTA Grant in the amount of $19,402 for the 

placement of Story Walk features in several parks and recreations locations around the county.  The grant is awarded for the 

purchase of the apparatus and the materials to initially set up the Story Walks.  There is a matching amount of $2,307 required for 

construction/installation costs that are not covered in the grant.  

Requested Action: Accept the award from the State Library in the amount of $19,402.00 and allow Library Director 

and County Manager to sign required documents. 

Budget impact for this fiscal year: (Funds available, allocation needed, etc.)  $2,307 can be covered using Friends of 

the Library funds held. 

 

Budget impact for subsequent years: (Funds available, allocation needed, etc.) Cost of materials to replace/update 

the books housed in the Story Walk will be covered under regular book purchases under 6110-45600. 

Time needed to explain to Commissioners: 2 minutes 

Attachments:  Award Letter and Budget worksheets 

Instructions for what to do with attachments once approved: Return to Laura Jones 

 

Note: Please have all signatures on any contracts, agreements, etc. prior to board meeting and give all copies to Jaime 

Carr by the agenda deadline. Remember, one original will be retained for the minutes. 

jaime.carr
Agenda



 
 
  
 

 
 

06/06/2024 

Laura Jones  

Director 

Duplin County Library 

107 Bowden Drive 

Kenansville, NC 28349 

Re: 2024-2025 EZ Grant Application - Story Walk around the county with Me! 

Dear Laura, 

Congratulations! The State Library is pleased to inform you that this application has been approved for 

funding in the amount of $19,402.00, with a $2,307.00 match contingent on budget changes. Construction 

costs are unallowable and have been removed from the overall cost of project.  Please submit a revised 

budget in the GMS; an example budget is available in the GMS. 

A public announcement of all 2024-2025 LSTA grant awards will be made today and grant awards will be 
listed online at https://statelibrary.ncdcr.gov/services-libraries/grants-libraries/lsta-grant-information.   
 
To make it easier for signatures to be gathered in a timely fashion, agreements are sent via DocuSign. How 
DocuSign works:  the Library Director receives the documentation first, then after checking the cover page 
for accuracy and filling in any missing information, attach any other necessary documents, and then sign the 
agreement.  The agreement is then automatically sent to the 2nd signer, which is the Local Government or 
Institutional Representative for the awarded library.   
 
Once that person signs, the agreement package is then sent automatically to the State Librarian for 
execution.  Once the State Librarian has signed, all parties receive a completed copy from DocuSign.  Please 
keep this for your records, you will not receive a copy in the mail. LSTA Staff will then email the Project 
Manager a notification that spending may begin, which includes important information about administering 
the grant, and any necessary attachments. 
 
Keep in mind that: 

• The library’s authorized representatives AND the State Librarian must sign the Grant Agreement for 
the grant to be considered fully executed; thereby completing the awarding of funds.  Funds cannot 
be encumbered or spent until you have been notified that spending may begin.  

• The Project Manager is the primary contact between your library and the State Library for the life 
of the project.  It is expected that when questions arise about expenditures, reimbursements, 
reporting, and anything else related to the grant, the Project Manager will be the State Library’s 
primary point of contact.  It is the library’s responsibility to notify the State Library of changes in 
Project Manager information. 

https://statelibrary.ncdcr.gov/services-libraries/grants-libraries/lsta-grant-information/manage-your-grant


 

 

• You are required to credit IMLS and the State Library (see statement below) in all related 
purchases, publications, and activities in conjunction with the use of the grant funds.   
“This grant is made possible by funding from the federal Institute of Museum and Library Services 
(IMLS) under the provisions of the Library Services and Technology Act (LSTA) as administered by 
the State Library of North Carolina, a division of the Department of Natural and Cultural Resources 
(IMLS grant number LS-256834-OLS-24).”   

 
Please let me know if you have any questions.  
 

Sincerely, 

 

 

Catherine Prince, Federal Programs Consultant 

 

http://www.imls.gov/recipients/imls_acknowledgement.aspx


 
   

     

         

 

    

         

 

SLNC Budget Form 
Use the budget instructions to help categorize costs. 

1. Salaries/Wages/Fringe
Title of Position and FTE Year 1 Year 2 (Project Grant only) Year 3 (Project Grant only) 

Matching 
Funds 

LSTA 
Funds 

Total 
Funds 

Matching 
Funds 

LSTA 
Funds 

Total 
Funds 

Matching 
Funds 

LSTA 
Funds 

Total 
Funds 

Subtotal 

2. Consultant Fees
Name of Consultant Year 1 Year 2 (Project Grant only) Year 3 (Project Grant only) 

Matching 
Funds 

LSTA 
Funds 

Total 
Funds 

Matching 
Funds 

LSTA 
Funds 

Total 
Funds 

Matching 
Funds 

LSTA 
Funds 

Total 
Funds 

Subtotal 

https://statelibrary.ncdcr.gov/lsta-budget-form-instructions/open


   
    

         
          
          
          
          
          

          
  

 
 

 

   

         
          
          
          
          
          
          
          
          
          
          
          
          
          
          
          
          
          
          

          
  

3. Travel, library staff only
To/From and Purpose Year 1 Year 2 (Project Grant only) Year 3 (Project Grant only) 

Matching 
Funds 

LSTA 
Funds 

Total 
Funds 

Matching 
Funds 

LSTA 
Funds 

Total 
Funds 

Matching 
Funds 

LSTA 
Funds 

Total 
Funds 

Subtotal 
4. Supplies

Item 
Group similar items together 
by row 

Year 1 Year 2 (Project Grant only) Year 3 (Project Grant only) 
Matching 

Funds 
LSTA 

Funds 
Total 
Funds 

Matching 
Funds 

LSTA 
Funds 

Total 
Funds 

Matching 
Funds 

LSTA 
Funds 

Total 
Funds 

Subtotal 



     

         

 

    

         

 

    

         
 

5. Equipment
Item Year 1 Year 2 (Project Grant only) Year 3 (Project Grant only) 

Matching 
Funds 

LSTA 
Funds 

Total 
Funds 

Matching 
Funds 

LSTA 
Funds 

Total 
Funds 

Matching 
Funds 

LSTA 
Funds 

Total 
Funds 

Subtotal 

6. Services
Name of Provider Year 1 Year 2 (Project Grant only) Year 3 (Project Grant only) 

Matching 
Funds 

LSTA 
Funds 

Total 
Funds 

Matching 
Funds 

LSTA 
Funds 

Total 
Funds 

Matching 
Funds 

LSTA 
Funds 

Total 
Funds 

Subtotal 

7. Total Direct Costs
Year 1 Year 2 (Project Grant only) Year 3 (Project Grant only) 

Matching 
Funds 

LSTA 
Funds 

Total 
Funds 

Matching 
Funds 

LSTA 
Funds 

Total 
Funds 

Matching 
Funds 

LSTA 
Funds 

Total 
Funds 

Subtotals (1-7) 



 

   

     

    

         

  

   

         
 

 
   

      
    

8. Indirect Costs
The library chooses not to include Indirect Costs 

The library chooses a rate not to exceed 10% of modified total Direct Costs (MTDC) 

The library has a rate of ______% that has been negotiated with a federal agency. 

Rate and Base Year 1 Year 2 (Project Grant only) Year 3 (Project Grant only) 
Matching 

Funds 
LSTA 

Funds 
Total 
Funds 

Matching 
Funds 

LSTA 
Funds 

Total 
Funds 

Matching 
Funds 

LSTA 
Funds 

Total 
Funds 

Indirect Costs Subtotal 

9. Total Project Costs
Year 1 Year 2 (Project Grant only) Year 3 (Project Grant only) 

Matching 
Funds 

LSTA 
Funds 

Total 
Funds 

Matching 
Funds 

LSTA 
Funds 

Total 
Funds 

Matching 
Funds 

LSTA 
Funds 

Total 
Funds 

Total Costs (7+8) 

10. Matching Calculator
Year 1 Year 2 (Project Grant only) Year 3 (Project Grant only) 

Budgeted Match Required Match Budgeted Match Required Match Budgeted Match Required Match 
Match Amounts 10% or 25% 33% 50% 



Story Walks consist of permanent fixtures in public recreational spaces featuring story book pages in 

sequence throughout the trail.  The library is responsible for changing out the story several times a year 

to keep the activity engaging for participants. 

With this grant we will focus on installing Story Walks in Albertson, Beulaville, Faison, Kenansville, Rose 

Hill and Warsaw with permission and an agreement with each municipality.  Kits will be purchased with 

grant funds ($19,402).  The installation will be completed using required matching funds ($2,307 from 

library trust accounts).  Local scout troops will be engaged to complete the installation. 

 

 



BA #     Duplin County

Budget Amendment

Department Title

Department Head's Signature

 (form can be e-mailed to Finance from Dept. Head)

All amendments involving revenues must be approved by the Board of Commissioners

Brief description of why this amendment is being requested:

Revenue 

code Line Item Description Amount

Expense 

code Line Item Description

6110-38405 19,402.00 6121-38405

Total 19,402.00 Total

Finance Signature

Date Approved:

Manager Signature

Date Approved:

Commisioner Approval

Date Approved:

Library

Laura C Jones

Award:  $19,402.00  LSTA Grant for Story Walks to be installed in several recreation locations around the county. 



County Commissioners 

Agenda Request Form 
 

Complete and submit this form along with any supporting documentation to request time on the 

county commissioner’s agenda.  This is not required for items included on the consent agenda. 
 

Name / Department:  TAX ADMINISTRATION Meeting Date:  JULY 15, 2024 

Subject:  TAX COLLECTOR’S SETTLEMENT FOR THE 2023/2024 TAX YEAR 

Summary, explanation and background: The Tax Collector is required to present the Tax Collector’s Settlement to 

the board for approval. 

Requested Action: Pass a motion to approve the settlement. 

 

Budget impact for this fiscal year: (Funds available, allocation needed, etc.)  

 

Budget impact for subsequent years: (Funds available, allocation needed, etc.)   

 

Time needed to explain to Commissioners: Five to ten minutes. 

Attachments:  The settlement, collection percentage report, and collection report. 

 

Instructions for what to do with attachments once approved: 

 

Note: Please have all signatures on any contracts, agreements, etc. prior to board meeting and give all copies to 

Jaime Carr by the agenda deadline. Remember, one original will be retained for the minutes 

jaime.carr
Agenda



Duplin County Settlement 
July 01, 2023 to June 30, 2024  

07/08/2024 08:23
AM 

Type: County
Year Original Levy Beginning Balance Additions Collections Ending Balance
2023 $32,201,811.08 $0.00 $32,201,811.08 $31,150,282.17 $1,051,528.91
2022 $31,277,978.36 $912,177.99 $0.00 $469,123.49 $443,054.50
2021 $29,981,126.23 $442,898.09 $0.00 $166,812.71 $276,085.38
2020 $29,616,785.74 $260,928.06 $0.00 $82,643.95 $178,284.11
2019 $29,495,753.25 $183,038.58 $0.00 $46,409.02 $136,629.56
2018 $27,815,723.11 $130,259.35 $0.00 $27,020.28 $103,239.07
2017 $26,061,494.49 $69,040.10 $0.00 $7,942.86 $61,097.24
2016 $26,662,786.38 $51,667.30 $0.00 $6,064.26 $45,603.04
2015 $26,261,577.81 $28,526.39 $0.00 $3,153.91 $25,372.48
2014 $25,723,174.80 $23,103.59 $0.00 $2,293.93 $20,809.66

Total $2,101,639.45 $32,201,811.08 $31,961,746.58 $2,341,703.95
 

Payments $31,935,910.54
Releases $754,086.57
Refunds $-436,758.44
Returned Checks $-25,085.24
Adjustments $-19,333.08
Fine and Forfeitures $-22,059.92
Discounts $464,190.21
Overpayments $-53,603.02
Cost $-14,149.56
Interest $-239,210.72
Penalty $-101,285.68
Prepayments 2023 $-48,264.74
Prepayments 2024 $-234,774.20
Prior Year Collections $2,083.86
Total $31,961,746.58



Duplin County Settlement 
July 01, 2023 to June 30, 2024  

07/08/2024 08:23
AM 

Type: Capital Fund
Year Original Levy Beginning Balance Additions Collections Ending Balance
2023 $900,208.10 $0.00 $900,208.10 $870,943.64 $29,264.46
2022 $874,550.57 $25,444.95 $0.00 $13,086.72 $12,358.23
2021 $836,928.16 $11,797.04 $0.00 $4,619.34 $7,177.70
2020 $827,613.12 $6,823.45 $0.00 $2,248.49 $4,574.96
2019 $816,333.53 $4,522.45 $0.00 $1,257.73 $3,264.72
2018 $0.00 $-16.35 $0.00 $0.00 $-16.35
2017 $0.00 $-6.72 $0.00 $0.00 $-6.72

Total $48,564.82 $900,208.10 $892,155.92 $56,617.00
 

Payments $883,539.01
Releases $17,303.99
Refunds $-6,922.68
Returned Checks $-696.63
Adjustments $-46.82
Fine and Forfeitures $0
Discounts $4,841.79
Overpayments $0
Cost $0
Interest $-5,862.74
Penalty $0.00
Prepayments 2023 $0
Prepayments 2024 $0
Prior Year Collections $
Total $892,155.92



Duplin County Settlement 
July 01, 2023 to June 30, 2024  

07/08/2024 08:23
AM 

Type: Solid Waste
Year Original Levy Beginning Balance Additions Collections Ending Balance
2023 $2,024,322.50 $0.00 $2,024,322.50 $1,806,914.15 $217,408.35
2022 $1,941,641.90 $211,487.42 $0.00 $80,688.52 $130,798.90
2021 $1,569,792.60 $103,935.32 $0.00 $25,825.27 $78,110.05
2020 $1,540,060.20 $76,711.30 $0.00 $13,490.21 $63,221.09
2019 $1,541,897.40 $59,488.46 $0.00 $9,720.82 $49,767.64
2018 $1,532,207.04 $46,799.03 $0.00 $5,571.46 $41,227.57
2017 $1,542,327.50 $36,689.32 $0.00 $3,336.64 $33,352.68
2016 $1,540,259.78 $30,579.81 $0.00 $3,976.62 $26,603.19
2015 $1,542,704.06 $25,063.14 $0.00 $3,534.57 $21,528.57
2014 $1,564,671.06 $19,125.99 $0.00 $1,059.65 $18,066.34

Total $609,879.79 $2,024,322.50 $1,954,117.91 $680,084.38
 

Payments $1,913,621.14
Releases $91,851.60
Refunds $-19,077.64
Returned Checks $-1,019.50
Adjustments $-17,047.35
Fine and Forfeitures $0
Discounts $23,187.88
Overpayments $0
Cost $0.00
Interest $-37,578.22
Penalty $0.00
Prepayments 2023 $0
Prepayments 2024 $0
Prior Year Collections $180.00
Total $1,954,117.91



Duplin County Settlement 
July 01, 2023 to June 30, 2024  

07/08/2024 08:23
AM 

Type: Oakwolfe Fire
Year Original Levy Beginning Balance Additions Collections Ending Balance
2023 $73,604.43 $0.00 $73,604.43 $71,494.44 $2,109.99
2022 $71,334.33 $1,449.53 $0.00 $602.14 $847.39
2021 $71,299.35 $710.09 $0.00 $239.96 $470.13
2020 $71,846.96 $382.37 $0.00 $105.09 $277.28
2019 $58,602.55 $36.92 $0.00 $41.82 $-4.90
2018 $57,922.52 $138.45 $0.00 $11.79 $126.66
2017 $57,258.01 $133.32 $0.00 $0.25 $133.07
2016 $50,603.99 $98.07 $0.00 $0.25 $97.82
2015 $59,190.04 $60.15 $0.00 $0.00 $60.15
2014 $48,161.58 $44.65 $0.00 $13.35 $31.30

Total $3,053.55 $73,604.43 $72,509.09 $4,148.89
 

Payments $70,846.52
Releases $516.16
Refunds $-51.94
Returned Checks $-17.60
Adjustments $-25.90
Fine and Forfeitures $0
Discounts $1,587.79
Overpayments $0
Cost $0.00
Interest $-345.94
Penalty $0.00
Prepayments 2023 $0
Prepayments 2024 $0
Prior Year Collections $0.00
Total $72,509.09



Duplin County Settlement 
July 01, 2023 to June 30, 2024  

07/08/2024 08:23
AM 

Type: Glisson Fire
Year Original Levy Beginning Balance Additions Collections Ending Balance
2023 $160,583.54 $0.00 $160,583.54 $156,688.26 $3,895.28
2022 $158,925.15 $3,144.39 $0.00 $1,700.46 $1,443.93
2021 $155,509.45 $1,202.99 $0.00 $495.20 $707.79
2020 $162,655.98 $830.80 $0.00 $418.00 $412.80
2019 $164,941.81 $509.64 $0.00 $254.74 $254.90
2018 $149,459.24 $445.47 $0.00 $197.48 $247.99
2017 $134,552.02 $200.36 $0.00 $27.85 $172.51
2016 $126,633.41 $127.40 $0.00 $5.54 $121.86
2015 $137,152.17 $73.23 $0.00 $3.18 $70.05
2014 $108,483.22 $54.69 $0.00 $2.35 $52.34

Total $6,588.97 $160,583.54 $159,793.06 $7,379.45
 

Payments $155,618.67
Releases $4,185.67
Refunds $-111.16
Returned Checks $-10.21
Adjustments $-43.07
Fine and Forfeitures $0
Discounts $1,054.70
Overpayments $0
Cost $0.00
Interest $-902.38
Penalty $0.00
Prepayments 2023 $0
Prepayments 2024 $0
Prior Year Collections $0.84
Total $159,793.06



Duplin County Settlement 
July 01, 2023 to June 30, 2024  

07/08/2024 08:23
AM 

Type: Sarecta Fire
Year Original Levy Beginning Balance Additions Collections Ending Balance
2023 $91,750.21 $0.00 $91,750.21 $90,179.56 $1,570.65
2022 $92,923.62 $1,636.46 $0.00 $850.77 $785.69
2021 $90,979.66 $1,133.82 $0.00 $409.90 $723.92
2020 $91,402.84 $513.59 $0.00 $308.01 $205.58
2019 $89,254.83 $328.45 $0.00 $83.97 $244.48
2018 $84,943.97 $173.20 $0.00 $21.02 $152.18
2017 $95,503.31 $85.14 $0.00 $2.10 $83.04
2016 $85,022.20 $28.00 $0.00 $0.01 $27.99
2015 $104,126.88 $22.70 $0.00 $0.00 $22.70
2014 $91,508.88 $16.71 $0.00 $0.00 $16.71

Total $3,938.07 $91,750.21 $91,855.34 $3,832.94
 

Payments $89,906.44
Releases $1,088.74
Refunds $-588.13
Returned Checks $0.00
Adjustments $-13.92
Fine and Forfeitures $0
Discounts $1,985.23
Overpayments $0
Cost $0.00
Interest $-523.02
Penalty $0.00
Prepayments 2023 $0
Prepayments 2024 $0
Prior Year Collections $0.00
Total $91,855.34



Duplin County Settlement 
July 01, 2023 to June 30, 2024  

07/08/2024 08:23
AM 

Type: East Duplin Fire
Year Original Levy Beginning Balance Additions Collections Ending Balance
2023 $108,315.30 $0.00 $108,315.30 $103,322.91 $4,992.39
2022 $103,068.98 $4,469.41 $0.00 $2,221.98 $2,247.43
2021 $100,843.54 $1,989.15 $0.00 $712.30 $1,276.85
2020 $96,392.83 $987.90 $0.00 $345.37 $642.53
2019 $89,760.43 $481.78 $0.00 $99.50 $382.28
2018 $86,238.11 $418.33 $0.00 $19.19 $399.14
2017 $81,409.06 $206.45 $0.00 $14.20 $192.25
2016 $74,226.98 $135.80 $0.00 $32.12 $103.68
2015 $132,618.05 $78.30 $0.00 $21.06 $57.24
2014 $70,526.97 $51.94 $0.00 $21.57 $30.37

Total $8,819.06 $108,315.30 $106,810.20 $10,324.16
 

Payments $104,450.79
Releases $811.99
Refunds $-96.31
Returned Checks $0.00
Adjustments $-28.43
Fine and Forfeitures $0
Discounts $2,582.70
Overpayments $0
Cost $0.00
Interest $-910.54
Penalty $0.00
Prepayments 2023 $0
Prepayments 2024 $0
Prior Year Collections $0.00
Total $106,810.20



Duplin County Settlement 
July 01, 2023 to June 30, 2024  

07/08/2024 08:23
AM 

Type: Fountaintown Fire
Year Original Levy Beginning Balance Additions Collections Ending Balance
2023 $32,519.42 $0.00 $32,519.42 $31,449.31 $1,070.11
2022 $30,778.82 $735.21 $0.00 $372.92 $362.29
2021 $29,907.22 $318.85 $0.00 $93.39 $225.46
2020 $29,851.96 $153.33 $0.00 $59.37 $93.96
2019 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Total $1,207.39 $32,519.42 $31,974.99 $1,751.82
 

Payments $31,163.04
Releases $146.19
Refunds $-44.81
Returned Checks $0.00
Adjustments $-0.38
Fine and Forfeitures $0
Discounts $879.75
Overpayments $0
Cost $0.00
Interest $-168.80
Penalty $0.00
Prepayments 2023 $0
Prepayments 2024 $0
Prior Year Collections $
Total $31,974.99



Duplin County Settlement 
July 01, 2023 to June 30, 2024  

07/08/2024 08:23
AM 

Type: Albertson Fire
Year Original Levy Beginning Balance Additions Collections Ending Balance
2023 $103,336.01 $0.00 $103,336.01 $100,877.10 $2,458.91
2022 $96,481.58 $3,406.08 $0.00 $2,046.80 $1,359.28
2021 $95,884.83 $1,368.05 $0.00 $740.84 $627.21
2020 $93,280.38 $1,073.93 $0.00 $250.21 $823.72
2019 $86,479.71 $653.48 $0.00 $188.89 $464.59
2018 $79,866.79 $483.28 $0.00 $85.84 $397.44
2017 $78,525.82 $222.13 $0.00 $77.41 $144.72
2016 $64,090.12 $67.70 $0.00 $9.48 $58.22
2015 $66,076.82 $73.07 $0.00 $3.89 $69.18
2014 $60,527.20 $53.74 $0.00 $1.50 $52.24

Total $7,401.46 $103,336.01 $104,281.96 $6,455.51
 

Payments $101,811.67
Releases $2,390.31
Refunds $-345.63
Returned Checks $-4.70
Adjustments $-197.57
Fine and Forfeitures $0
Discounts $1,595.27
Overpayments $0
Cost $0.00
Interest $-967.39
Penalty $0.00
Prepayments 2023 $0
Prepayments 2024 $0
Prior Year Collections $0.00
Total $104,281.96



Duplin County Settlement 
July 01, 2023 to June 30, 2024  

07/08/2024 08:23
AM 

Type: Stacy Britt Fire
Year Original Levy Beginning Balance Additions Collections Ending Balance
2023 $207,020.97 $0.00 $207,020.97 $200,110.32 $6,910.65
2022 $197,078.06 $7,223.39 $0.00 $3,070.16 $4,153.23
2021 $190,738.87 $5,001.49 $0.00 $1,741.84 $3,259.65
2020 $182,615.20 $2,760.64 $0.00 $231.97 $2,528.67
2019 $183,389.48 $2,473.14 $0.00 $170.19 $2,302.95
2018 $153,361.45 $1,890.08 $0.00 $141.90 $1,748.18
2017 $161,844.66 $1,521.31 $0.00 $35.64 $1,485.67
2016 $139,669.71 $1,275.43 $0.00 $0.00 $1,275.43
2015 $153,710.70 $115.06 $0.00 $1.58 $113.48
2014 $107,351.07 $90.80 $0.00 $2.10 $88.70

Total $22,351.34 $207,020.97 $205,505.70 $23,866.61
 

Payments $203,433.82
Releases $1,313.79
Refunds $-443.09
Returned Checks $0.00
Adjustments $-89.59
Fine and Forfeitures $0
Discounts $2,835.21
Overpayments $0
Cost $0.00
Interest $-1,549.18
Penalty $0.00
Prepayments 2023 $0
Prepayments 2024 $0
Prior Year Collections $4.74
Total $205,505.70



Duplin County Settlement 
July 01, 2023 to June 30, 2024  

07/08/2024 08:23
AM 

Type: Franklin Fire
Year Original Levy Beginning Balance Additions Collections Ending Balance
2023 $37,674.87 $0.00 $37,674.87 $35,337.37 $2,337.50
2022 $35,574.68 $1,494.91 $0.00 $922.68 $572.23
2021 $32,879.36 $736.00 $0.00 $509.75 $226.25
2020 $25,934.13 $67.88 $0.00 $0.40 $67.48
2019 $22,974.53 $103.25 $0.00 $0.40 $102.85
2018 $22,684.45 $87.29 $0.00 $0.40 $86.89
2017 $21,557.72 $44.27 $0.00 $0.71 $43.56
2016 $21,710.37 $35.43 $0.00 $7.00 $28.43
2015 $23,775.07 $26.61 $0.00 $22.48 $4.13
2014 $17,926.18 $8.61 $0.00 $4.39 $4.22

Total $2,604.25 $37,674.87 $36,805.58 $3,473.54
 

Payments $36,505.47
Releases $453.93
Refunds $-136.07
Returned Checks $-58.24
Adjustments $-14.17
Fine and Forfeitures $0
Discounts $421.60
Overpayments $0
Cost $0.00
Interest $-366.94
Penalty $0.00
Prepayments 2023 $0
Prepayments 2024 $0
Prior Year Collections $0.00
Total $36,805.58



Duplin County Settlement 
July 01, 2023 to June 30, 2024  

07/08/2024 08:23
AM 

Type: Northeast Fire
Year Original Levy Beginning Balance Additions Collections Ending Balance
2023 $269,158.22 $0.00 $269,158.22 $264,615.80 $4,542.42
2022 $263,216.45 $3,536.46 $0.00 $1,389.36 $2,147.10
2021 $261,065.22 $2,130.41 $0.00 $494.14 $1,636.27
2020 $260,851.22 $901.32 $0.00 $243.45 $657.87
2019 $209,473.73 $917.58 $0.00 $156.04 $761.54
2018 $163,447.67 $215.46 $0.00 $70.50 $144.96
2017 $160,646.88 $126.03 $0.00 $11.97 $114.06
2016 $173,284.50 $83.67 $0.00 $36.92 $46.75
2015 $180,379.08 $29.67 $0.00 $5.61 $24.06
2014 $167,995.17 $21.40 $0.00 $0.10 $21.30

Total $7,962.00 $269,158.22 $267,023.89 $10,096.33
 

Payments $262,142.28
Releases $1,376.95
Refunds $-164.51
Returned Checks $-208.83
Adjustments $-21.93
Fine and Forfeitures $0
Discounts $4,853.31
Overpayments $0
Cost $0.00
Interest $-953.38
Penalty $0.00
Prepayments 2023 $0
Prepayments 2024 $0
Prior Year Collections $0.00
Total $267,023.89



Duplin County Settlement 
July 01, 2023 to June 30, 2024  

07/08/2024 08:23
AM 

Type: Chinquapin Fire
Year Original Levy Beginning Balance Additions Collections Ending Balance
2023 $77,286.80 $0.00 $77,286.80 $73,178.93 $4,107.87
2022 $76,384.89 $3,742.56 $0.00 $2,062.57 $1,679.99
2021 $69,884.04 $1,339.95 $0.00 $576.44 $763.51
2020 $66,741.10 $899.31 $0.00 $370.50 $528.81

Total $5,981.82 $77,286.80 $76,188.44 $7,080.18
 

Payments $75,179.12
Releases $1,051.51
Refunds $-330.34
Returned Checks $-250.81
Adjustments $-1.14
Fine and Forfeitures $0
Discounts $1,335.27
Overpayments $0
Cost $0.00
Interest $-795.17
Penalty $0.00
Prepayments 2023 $0
Prepayments 2024 $0
Prior Year Collections $
Total $76,188.44



Duplin County Settlement 
July 01, 2023 to June 30, 2024  

07/08/2024 08:23
AM 

Type: Duplin Pender Fire
Year Original Levy Beginning Balance Additions Collections Ending Balance
2023 $85,473.17 $0.00 $85,473.17 $81,812.92 $3,660.25
2022 $79,721.46 $4,463.49 $0.00 $2,818.05 $1,645.44
2021 $72,401.72 $2,781.48 $0.00 $1,509.42 $1,272.06
2020 $69,056.40 $1,965.69 $0.00 $1,054.27 $911.42

Total $9,210.66 $85,473.17 $87,194.66 $7,489.17
 

Payments $82,994.62
Releases $4,678.66
Refunds $-7.28
Returned Checks $-34.64
Adjustments $-1.00
Fine and Forfeitures $0
Discounts $438.30
Overpayments $0
Cost $0.00
Interest $-874.00
Penalty $0.00
Prepayments 2023 $0
Prepayments 2024 $0
Prior Year Collections $
Total $87,194.66



Duplin County Settlement 
July 01, 2023 to June 30, 2024  

07/08/2024 08:23
AM 

Type: Goshen Fire
Year Original Levy Beginning Balance Additions Collections Ending Balance
2023 $53,387.22 $0.00 $53,387.22 $50,879.21 $2,508.01
2022 $52,421.41 $2,326.94 $0.00 $707.41 $1,619.53
2021 $51,942.66 $854.84 $0.00 $248.15 $606.69
2020 $47,761.14 $434.47 $0.00 $43.83 $390.64

Total $3,616.25 $53,387.22 $51,878.60 $5,124.87
 

Payments $50,803.04
Releases $367.97
Refunds $-57.60
Returned Checks $0.00
Adjustments $-0.70
Fine and Forfeitures $0
Discounts $1,067.56
Overpayments $0
Cost $0.00
Interest $-301.67
Penalty $0.00
Prepayments 2023 $0
Prepayments 2024 $0
Prior Year Collections $
Total $51,878.60



Duplin County Settlement 
July 01, 2023 to June 30, 2024  

07/08/2024 08:23
AM 

Type: Greenevers Fire
Year Original Levy Beginning Balance Additions Collections Ending Balance
2023 $42,554.20 $0.00 $42,554.20 $40,126.89 $2,427.31
2022 $40,971.84 $2,379.86 $0.00 $1,558.27 $821.59
2021 $39,871.26 $748.59 $0.00 $177.98 $570.61
2020 $37,069.15 $410.54 $0.00 $77.91 $332.63

Total $3,538.99 $42,554.20 $41,941.05 $4,152.14
 

Payments $40,766.17
Releases $950.14
Refunds $-1.95
Returned Checks $0.00
Adjustments $-0.20
Fine and Forfeitures $0
Discounts $675.99
Overpayments $0
Cost $0.00
Interest $-449.10
Penalty $0.00
Prepayments 2023 $0
Prepayments 2024 $0
Prior Year Collections $
Total $41,941.05



Duplin County Settlement 
July 01, 2023 to June 30, 2024  

07/08/2024 08:23
AM 

Type: Lyman Fire
Year Original Levy Beginning Balance Additions Collections Ending Balance
2023 $22,612.87 $0.00 $22,612.87 $21,970.08 $642.79
2022 $20,876.32 $629.47 $0.00 $313.98 $315.49
2021 $20,480.64 $252.97 $0.00 $4.96 $248.01
2020 $19,164.31 $211.20 $0.00 $11.15 $200.05

Total $1,093.64 $22,612.87 $22,300.17 $1,406.34
 

Payments $21,891.40
Releases $194.21
Refunds $-44.75
Returned Checks $-42.05
Adjustments $-0.20
Fine and Forfeitures $0
Discounts $487.80
Overpayments $0
Cost $0.00
Interest $-186.24
Penalty $0.00
Prepayments 2023 $0
Prepayments 2024 $0
Prior Year Collections $
Total $22,300.17



Duplin County Settlement 
July 01, 2023 to June 30, 2024  

07/08/2024 08:23
AM 

Type: North Duplin Fire
Year Original Levy Beginning Balance Additions Collections Ending Balance
2023 $42,009.70 $0.00 $42,009.70 $41,517.45 $492.25
2022 $41,449.45 $515.22 $0.00 $189.00 $326.22
2021 $40,572.67 $277.59 $0.00 $41.72 $235.87
2020 $35,508.27 $83.82 $0.00 $7.28 $76.54

Total $876.63 $42,009.70 $41,755.45 $1,130.88
 

Payments $40,755.78
Releases $146.62
Refunds $-123.98
Returned Checks $0.00
Adjustments $-0.45
Fine and Forfeitures $0
Discounts $1,106.53
Overpayments $0
Cost $0.00
Interest $-129.05
Penalty $0.00
Prepayments 2023 $0
Prepayments 2024 $0
Prior Year Collections $
Total $41,755.45



Duplin County Settlement 
July 01, 2023 to June 30, 2024  

07/08/2024 08:23
AM 

Type: Potters Hill Fire
Year Original Levy Beginning Balance Additions Collections Ending Balance
2023 $60,652.88 $0.00 $60,652.88 $58,712.75 $1,940.13
2022 $53,148.10 $2,246.42 $0.00 $1,613.26 $633.16
2021 $52,467.31 $787.48 $0.00 $507.28 $280.20
2020 $51,524.19 $304.75 $0.00 $122.62 $182.13

Total $3,338.65 $60,652.88 $60,955.91 $3,035.62
 

Payments $59,238.59
Releases $1,178.67
Refunds $-138.59
Returned Checks $-9.42
Adjustments $-0.67
Fine and Forfeitures $0
Discounts $1,296.91
Overpayments $0
Cost $0.00
Interest $-609.58
Penalty $0.00
Prepayments 2023 $0
Prepayments 2024 $0
Prior Year Collections $
Total $60,955.91



Duplin County Settlement 
July 01, 2023 to June 30, 2024  

07/08/2024 08:23
AM 

Type: Rosemary Fire
Year Original Levy Beginning Balance Additions Collections Ending Balance
2023 $221,279.31 $0.00 $221,279.31 $214,310.20 $6,969.11
2022 $195,398.98 $3,235.64 $0.00 $1,392.45 $1,843.19
2021 $149,334.04 $1,481.73 $0.00 $403.82 $1,077.91
2020 $129,051.71 $708.58 $0.00 $220.20 $488.38

Total $5,425.95 $221,279.31 $216,326.67 $10,378.59
 

Payments $198,722.58
Releases $3,608.41
Refunds $-2,959.95
Returned Checks $-137.20
Adjustments $-1.17
Fine and Forfeitures $0
Discounts $17,618.21
Overpayments $0
Cost $0.00
Interest $-524.21
Penalty $0.00
Prepayments 2023 $0
Prepayments 2024 $0
Prior Year Collections $
Total $216,326.67



Duplin County Settlement 
July 01, 2023 to June 30, 2024  

07/08/2024 08:23
AM 

Type: Teachey Fire
Year Original Levy Beginning Balance Additions Collections Ending Balance
2023 $115,899.64 $0.00 $115,899.64 $113,612.89 $2,286.75
2022 $112,697.32 $2,197.52 $0.00 $1,000.40 $1,197.12
2021 $106,364.84 $1,217.46 $0.00 $508.57 $708.89
2020 $101,646.40 $789.99 $0.00 $334.02 $455.97

Total $4,204.97 $115,899.64 $115,455.88 $4,648.73
 

Payments $112,887.67
Releases $610.04
Refunds $-269.66
Returned Checks $-18.20
Adjustments $-0.18
Fine and Forfeitures $0
Discounts $2,702.72
Overpayments $0
Cost $0.00
Interest $-456.51
Penalty $0.00
Prepayments 2023 $0
Prepayments 2024 $0
Prior Year Collections $
Total $115,455.88



Duplin County Settlement 
July 01, 2023 to June 30, 2024  

07/08/2024 08:23
AM 

Type: Waylin Fire
Year Original Levy Beginning Balance Additions Collections Ending Balance
2023 $25,095.22 $0.00 $25,095.22 $24,658.45 $436.77
2022 $25,123.90 $464.26 $0.00 $342.49 $121.77
2021 $21,703.12 $360.80 $0.00 $275.02 $85.78
2020 $17,361.72 $88.83 $0.00 $0.00 $88.83

Total $913.89 $25,095.22 $25,275.96 $733.15
 

Payments $24,966.66
Releases $49.67
Refunds $0.00
Returned Checks $0.00
Adjustments $-0.15
Fine and Forfeitures $0
Discounts $418.16
Overpayments $0
Cost $0.00
Interest $-158.38
Penalty $0.00
Prepayments 2023 $0
Prepayments 2024 $0
Prior Year Collections $
Total $25,275.96



Duplin County Settlement 
July 01, 2023 to June 30, 2024  

07/08/2024 08:23
AM 

Type: Cherry Tree Fire
Year Original Levy Beginning Balance Additions Collections Ending Balance
2023 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
2022 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
2020 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Total $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
 

Payments $
Overpayments $0
Prepayments 2023 $0
Prepayments 2024 $0
Prior Year Collections $
Total $0.00



Duplin County Settlement 
July 01, 2023 to June 30, 2024  

07/08/2024 08:23
AM 

Type: Liberty Hall Fire
Year Original Levy Beginning Balance Additions Collections Ending Balance
2023 $177,115.39 $0.00 $177,115.39 $172,952.79 $4,162.60
2022 $180,294.96 $3,421.53 $0.00 $1,794.84 $1,626.69
2021 $160,703.31 $1,575.54 $0.00 $826.72 $748.82
2020 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Total $4,997.07 $177,115.39 $175,574.35 $6,538.11
 

Payments $170,621.50
Releases $3,650.41
Refunds $-332.53
Returned Checks $-92.52
Adjustments $-0.52
Fine and Forfeitures $0
Discounts $2,782.01
Overpayments $0
Cost $0.00
Interest $-1,054.00
Penalty $0.00
Prepayments 2023 $0
Prepayments 2024 $0
Prior Year Collections $
Total $175,574.35



Duplin County Settlement 
July 01, 2023 to June 30, 2024  

07/08/2024 08:23
AM 

Type: Natural Wells Fire
Year Original Levy Beginning Balance Additions Collections Ending Balance
2023 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
2022 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
2020 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Total $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
 

Payments $
Overpayments $0
Prepayments 2023 $0
Prepayments 2024 $0
Prior Year Collections $
Total $0.00



Duplin County Settlement 
July 01, 2023 to June 30, 2024  

07/08/2024 08:23
AM 

Type: Nine Mile Fire
Year Original Levy Beginning Balance Additions Collections Ending Balance
2023 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
2022 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
2020 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Total $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
 

Payments $
Overpayments $0
Prepayments 2023 $0
Prepayments 2024 $0
Prior Year Collections $
Total $0.00



Duplin County Settlement 
July 01, 2023 to June 30, 2024  

07/08/2024 08:23
AM 

Type: Pinhook Fire
Year Original Levy Beginning Balance Additions Collections Ending Balance
2023 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
2022 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
2020 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Total $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
 

Payments $
Overpayments $0
Prepayments 2023 $0
Prepayments 2024 $0
Prior Year Collections $
Total $0.00



Duplin County Settlement 
July 01, 2023 to June 30, 2024  

07/08/2024 08:23
AM 

Type: Pricetown Fire
Year Original Levy Beginning Balance Additions Collections Ending Balance
2023 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
2022 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
2020 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Total $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
 

Payments $
Overpayments $0
Prepayments 2023 $0
Prepayments 2024 $0
Prior Year Collections $
Total $0.00



Duplin County Settlement 
July 01, 2023 to June 30, 2024  

07/08/2024 08:23
AM 

Type: Town Of Calypso
Year Original Levy Beginning Balance Additions Collections Ending Balance
2023 $84,968.50 $0.00 $84,968.50 $81,899.23 $3,069.27
2022 $83,712.67 $3,857.84 $0.00 $2,154.94 $1,702.90
2021 $81,760.28 $1,689.97 $0.00 $1,252.83 $437.14
2020 $89,759.64 $-263.48 $0.00 $169.34 $-432.82
2019 $74,434.47 $158.95 $0.00 $103.71 $55.24
2018 $74,158.13 $100.23 $0.00 $26.51 $73.72
2017 $66,533.39 $59.15 $0.00 $29.28 $29.87
2016 $65,484.10 $7.93 $0.00 $0.00 $7.93
2015 $57,818.86 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Total $5,610.59 $84,968.50 $85,635.84 $4,943.25
 

Payments $85,422.58
Releases $762.25
Refunds $-330.45
Returned Checks $0.00
Adjustments $-0.82
Fine and Forfeitures $0
Discounts $631.83
Overpayments $0
Cost $0.00
Interest $-849.55
Penalty $0.00
Prepayments 2023 $0
Prepayments 2024 $0
Prior Year Collections $
Total $85,635.84



Duplin County Settlement 
July 01, 2023 to June 30, 2024  

07/08/2024 08:23
AM 

Type: Town Of Greenevers
Year Original Levy Beginning Balance Additions Collections Ending Balance
2023 $55,112.99 $0.00 $55,112.99 $47,901.84 $7,211.15
2022 $56,508.13 $4,111.67 $0.00 $1,602.33 $2,509.34
2021 $56,917.40 $2,477.17 $0.00 $281.91 $2,195.26
2020 $57,780.15 $1,120.42 $0.00 $114.07 $1,006.35
2019 $48,253.18 $787.70 $0.00 $28.37 $759.33
2018 $48,519.94 $886.20 $0.00 $47.89 $838.31
2017 $46,229.10 $635.26 $0.00 $6.00 $629.26
2016 $40,291.34 $448.26 $0.00 $8.85 $439.41

Total $10,466.68 $55,112.99 $49,991.26 $15,588.41
 

Payments $49,864.68
Releases $5,252.25
Refunds $-4,650.69
Returned Checks $-62.10
Adjustments $-0.52
Fine and Forfeitures $0
Discounts $256.05
Overpayments $0
Cost $0.00
Interest $-668.41
Penalty $0.00
Prepayments 2023 $0
Prepayments 2024 $0
Prior Year Collections $
Total $49,991.26



Duplin County Settlement 
July 01, 2023 to June 30, 2024  

07/08/2024 08:23
AM 

Type: Town Of Kenansville
Year Original Levy Beginning Balance Additions Collections Ending Balance
2023 $405,267.47 $0.00 $405,267.47 $391,301.72 $13,965.75
2022 $348,649.89 $9,948.79 $0.00 $4,498.57 $5,450.22
2021 $342,341.81 $2,660.95 $0.00 $1,104.04 $1,556.91
2020 $336,050.86 $1,538.49 $0.00 $94.34 $1,444.15
2019 $357,810.41 $1,009.74 $0.00 $12.74 $997.00
2018 $295,599.38 $1,123.83 $0.00 $2.98 $1,120.85
2017 $335,944.82 $991.72 $0.00 $2.98 $988.74
2016 $323,253.98 $476.66 $0.00 $0.00 $476.66

Total $17,750.18 $405,267.47 $397,017.37 $26,000.28
 

Payments $377,864.95
Releases $20,226.38
Refunds $-1,497.56
Returned Checks $-128.79
Adjustments $-130.25
Fine and Forfeitures $0
Discounts $3,643.79
Overpayments $0
Cost $0.00
Interest $-2,961.15
Penalty $0.00
Prepayments 2023 $0
Prepayments 2024 $0
Prior Year Collections $
Total $397,017.37



Duplin County Settlement 
July 01, 2023 to June 30, 2024  

07/08/2024 08:23
AM 

Type: Town Of Warsaw
Year Original Levy Beginning Balance Additions Collections Ending Balance
2023 $1,386,572.06 $0.00 $1,386,572.06 $1,352,634.64 $33,937.42
2022 $1,528,973.85 $28,055.18 $0.00 $16,184.57 $11,870.61
2021 $1,224,412.41 $12,138.41 $0.00 $3,585.83 $8,552.58
2020 $1,207,741.62 $8,218.26 $0.00 $1,581.78 $6,636.48
2019 $1,208,403.84 $5,644.35 $0.00 $1,341.18 $4,303.17
2018 $876,566.09 $2,694.61 $0.00 $177.42 $2,517.19
2017 $809,729.26 $1,957.73 $0.00 $41.58 $1,916.15
2016 $879,585.65 $1,314.67 $0.00 $38.25 $1,276.42

Total $60,023.21 $1,386,572.06 $1,375,585.25 $71,010.02
 

Payments $1,347,912.50
Releases $25,549.05
Refunds $-5,504.03
Returned Checks $0.00
Adjustments $236.49
Fine and Forfeitures $0
Discounts $17,045.28
Overpayments $0
Cost $0.00
Interest $-9,654.04
Penalty $0.00
Prepayments 2023 $0
Prepayments 2024 $0
Prior Year Collections $
Total $1,375,585.25



Duplin County Settlement 
July 01, 2023 to June 30, 2024  

07/08/2024 08:23
AM 

Type: Town Of Beulaville
Year Original Levy Beginning Balance Additions Collections Ending Balance
2023 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
2022 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
2021 $127.38 $54.95 $0.00 $0.00 $54.95
2020 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
2019 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Total $54.95 $0.00 $0.00 $54.95
 

Payments $
Overpayments $0
Prepayments 2023 $0
Prepayments 2024 $0
Prior Year Collections $
Total $0.00



Duplin County Settlement 
July 01, 2023 to June 30, 2024  

07/08/2024 08:23
AM 

Type: Town Of Faison
Year Original Levy Beginning Balance Additions Collections Ending Balance
2023 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
2022 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
2020 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
2019 $0.00 $-1.75 $0.00 $0.00 $-1.75

Total $-1.75 $0.00 $0.00 $-1.75
 

Payments $
Overpayments $0
Prepayments 2023 $0
Prepayments 2024 $0
Prior Year Collections $
Total $0.00



Duplin County Settlement 
July 01, 2023 to June 30, 2024  

07/08/2024 08:23
AM 

Type: Town Of Magnolia
Year Original Levy Beginning Balance Additions Collections Ending Balance
2023 $181,478.02 $0.00 $181,478.02 $163,419.14 $18,058.88
2022 $169,239.09 $15,730.36 $0.00 $9,546.66 $6,183.70
2021 $166,906.38 $8,932.60 $0.00 $5,750.78 $3,181.82
2020 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
2019 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Total $24,662.96 $181,478.02 $178,716.58 $27,424.40
 

Payments $171,025.29
Releases $10,458.31
Refunds $-949.70
Returned Checks $0.00
Adjustments $0.24
Fine and Forfeitures $0
Discounts $1,631.43
Overpayments $0
Cost $0.00
Interest $-3,448.99
Penalty $0.00
Prepayments 2023 $0
Prepayments 2024 $0
Prior Year Collections $
Total $178,716.58



Duplin County Settlement 
July 01, 2023 to June 30, 2024  

07/08/2024 08:23
AM 

Type: Town Of Rose Hill
Year Original Levy Beginning Balance Additions Collections Ending Balance
2023 $490,689.52 $0.00 $490,689.52 $460,726.46 $29,963.06
2022 $466,904.70 $17,447.74 $0.00 $8,557.77 $8,889.97
2021 $495,401.54 $9,531.28 $0.00 $3,809.32 $5,721.96
2020 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
2019 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Total $26,979.02 $490,689.52 $473,093.55 $44,574.99
 

Payments $465,879.34
Releases $5,542.15
Refunds $-103.54
Returned Checks $-91.23
Adjustments $-3.03
Fine and Forfeitures $0
Discounts $4,796.26
Overpayments $0
Cost $0.00
Interest $-2,926.40
Penalty $0.00
Prepayments 2023 $0
Prepayments 2024 $0
Prior Year Collections $
Total $473,093.55



Duplin County Settlement 
July 01, 2023 to June 30, 2024  

07/08/2024 08:23
AM 

Type: Town Of Teachey
Year Original Levy Beginning Balance Additions Collections Ending Balance
2023 $128,311.98 $0.00 $128,311.98 $123,502.58 $4,809.40
2022 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
2020 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
2019 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Total $0.00 $128,311.98 $123,502.58 $4,809.40
 

Payments $119,584.90
Releases $4,114.08
Refunds $-777.90
Returned Checks $0.00
Adjustments $-0.16
Fine and Forfeitures $0
Discounts $1,108.75
Overpayments $0
Cost $0.00
Interest $-527.09
Penalty $0.00
Prepayments 2023 $0
Prepayments 2024 $0
Prior Year Collections $
Total $123,502.58



Duplin County Settlement 
July 01, 2023 to June 30, 2024  

07/08/2024 08:23
AM 

Type: Town Of Wallace
Year Original Levy Beginning Balance Additions Collections Ending Balance
2023 $1,552,308.25 $0.00 $1,552,308.25 $1,503,960.66 $48,347.59
2022 $1,529,209.20 $55,852.27 $0.00 $30,361.86 $25,490.41
2021 $1,459,823.77 $14,514.90 $0.00 $6,871.03 $7,643.87
2020 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
2019 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Total $70,367.17 $1,552,308.25 $1,541,193.55 $81,481.87
 

Payments $1,511,948.62
Releases $35,102.87
Refunds $-1,551.13
Returned Checks $-7,182.27
Adjustments $-3.03
Fine and Forfeitures $0
Discounts $13,881.76
Overpayments $0
Cost $0.00
Interest $-11,003.27
Penalty $0.00
Prepayments 2023 $0
Prepayments 2024 $0
Prior Year Collections $
Total $1,541,193.55



jaime.carr
Agenda







jaime.carr
Agenda







jaime.carr
Agenda
































































































	Insert from: "Duplin Budget worksheet LSTA Story Walk Grant.pdf"
	SLNC Budget Form
	1. Salaries/Wages/Fringe
	2. Consultant Fees
	3. Travel, library staff only
	4. Supplies
	5. Equipment
	6. Services
	7. Total Direct Costs
	8. Indirect Costs
	9. Total Project Costs
	10. Matching Calculator

	Year 3 (Project Grant only)
	Year 2 (Project Grant only)
	Year 1
	Name/Title of Position
	Total Funds
	LSTA Funds
	Matching Funds
	Total Funds
	LSTA Funds
	Matching Funds
	Total Funds
	LSTA Funds
	Matching Funds
	Year 3 (Project Grant only)
	Year 2 (Project Grant only)
	Year 1
	Name of Consultant
	Total Funds
	LSTA Funds
	Matching Funds
	Total Funds
	LSTA Funds
	Matching Funds
	Total Funds
	LSTA Funds
	Matching Funds
	Year 3 (Project Grant only)
	Year 2 (Project Grant only)
	Year 1
	To/From and Purpose
	Total Funds
	LSTA Funds
	Matching Funds
	Total Funds
	LSTA Funds
	Matching Funds
	Total Funds
	LSTA Funds
	Matching Funds
	Year 3 (Project Grant only)
	Year 2 (Project Grant only)
	Year 1
	Item
	Total Funds
	LSTA Funds
	Matching Funds
	Total Funds
	LSTA Funds
	Matching Funds
	Total Funds
	LSTA Funds
	Matching Funds
	Year 3 (Project Grant only)
	Year 2 (Project Grant only)
	Year 1
	Item
	Total Funds
	LSTA Funds
	Matching Funds
	Total Funds
	LSTA Funds
	Matching Funds
	Total Funds
	LSTA Funds
	Matching Funds
	Year 3 (Project Grant only)
	Year 2 (Project Grant only)
	Year 1
	Name of Provider
	Total Funds
	LSTA Funds
	Matching Funds
	Total Funds
	LSTA Funds
	Matching Funds
	Total Funds
	LSTA Funds
	Matching Funds
	Year 3 (Project Grant only)
	Year 2 (Project Grant only)
	Year 1
	Name of Provider
	Total Funds
	LSTA Funds
	Matching Funds
	Total Funds
	LSTA Funds
	Matching Funds
	Total Funds
	LSTA Funds
	Matching Funds
	Year 3 (Project Grant only)
	Year 2 (Project Grant only)
	Year 1
	Rate and Base
	Total Funds
	LSTA Funds
	Matching Funds
	Total Funds
	LSTA Funds
	Matching Funds
	Total Funds
	LSTA Funds
	Matching Funds
	Year 3 (Project Grant only)
	Year 2 (Project Grant only)
	Year 1
	Total Funds
	LSTA Funds
	Matching Funds
	Total Funds
	LSTA Funds
	Matching Funds
	Total Funds
	LSTA Funds
	Matching Funds
	Year 3 (Project Grant only)
	Year 2 (Project Grant only)
	Year 1
	Required Match
	Budgeted Match
	Required Match
	Budgeted Match
	Required Match
	Budgeted Match


	SalaryRow1: 
	SalaryRow2: 
	SalaryRow3: 
	SalaryRow4: 
	SalaryRow5: 
	SalaryRow6: 
	SalaryRow7: 
	ConsultantRow1: 
	ConsultantRow2: 
	ConsultantRow3: 
	ConsultantRow4: 
	ConsultantRow5: 
	Salary Year 1Matching FundsRow1: 
	Salary Year 1Matching FundsRow2: 
	Salary Year 1Matching FundsRow3: 
	Salary Year 1Matching FundsRow4: 
	Salary Year 1Matching FundsRow5: 
	Salary Year 1Matching FundsRow6: 
	Salary Year 1Matching FundsRow7: 
	Salary Year 1Matching FundsSubtotal: 0
	Consultant Year1Matching FundsRow1: 
	Consultant Year1Matching FundsRow2: 
	Consultant Year1Matching FundsRow3: 
	Consultant Year1Matching FundsRow4: 
	Consultant Year1Matching FundsRow5: 
	Consultant Year1Matching FundsSubtotal: 0
	Salary Year1LSTA FundsRow1: 
	Salary Year1LSTA FundsRow2: 
	Salary Year1LSTA FundsRow3: 
	Salary Year1LSTA FundsRow4: 
	Salary Year1LSTA FundsRow5: 
	Salary Year1LSTA FundsRow6: 
	Salary Year1LSTA FundsRow7: 
	Salary Year1LSTA FundsSubtotal: 0
	Consultant Year1LSTA FundsRow1: 
	Consultant Year1LSTA FundsRow2: 
	Consultant Year1LSTA FundsRow3: 
	Consultant Year1LSTA FundsRow4: 
	Consultant Year1LSTA FundsRow5: 
	Consultant Year1LSTA FundsSubtotal: 0
	Salary Year1Total FundsRow1: 0
	Salary Year1Total FundsRow2: 0
	Salary Year1Total FundsRow3: 0
	Salary Year1Total FundsRow4: 0
	Salary Year1Total FundsRow5: 0
	Salary Year1Total FundsRow6: 0
	Salary Year1Total FundsRow7: 0
	Salary Year1Total FundsSubtotal: 0
	Consultant Year1Total FundsRow1: 0
	Consultant Year1Total FundsRow2: 0
	Consultant Year1Total FundsRow3: 0
	Consultant Year1Total FundsRow4: 0
	Consultant Year1Total FundsRow5: 0
	Consultant Year1Total FundsSubtotal: 0
	Salary Year 2Matching FundsRow1: 
	Salary Year 2Matching FundsRow2: 
	Salary Year 2Matching FundsRow3: 
	Salary Year 2Matching FundsRow4: 
	Salary Year 2Matching FundsRow5: 
	Salary Year 2Matching FundsRow6: 
	Salary Year 2Matching FundsRow7: 
	Salary Year 2Matching FundsSubtotal: 0
	Consultant Year 2Matching FundsRow1: 
	Consultant Year 2Matching FundsRow2: 
	Consultant Year 2Matching FundsRow3: 
	Consultant Year 2Matching FundsRow4: 
	Consultant Year 2Matching FundsRow5: 
	Consultant Year 2Matching FundsSubtotal: 0
	Salary Year2LSTA FundsRow1: 
	Salary Year2LSTA FundsRow2: 
	Salary Year2LSTA FundsRow3: 
	Salary Year2LSTA FundsRow4: 
	Salary Year2LSTA FundsRow5: 
	Salary Year2LSTA FundsRow6: 
	Salary Year2LSTA FundsRow7: 
	Salary Year2LSTA FundsSubtotal: 0
	Consultant Year 2LSTA FundsRow1: 
	Consultant Year 2LSTA FundsRow2: 
	Consultant Year 2LSTA FundsRow3: 
	Consultant Year 2LSTA FundsRow4: 
	Consultant Year 2LSTA FundsRow5: 
	Consultant Year 2LSTA FundsSubtotal: 0
	Salary Year2Total FundsRow1: 0
	Salary Year2Total FundsRow2: 0
	Salary Year2Total FundsRow3: 0
	Salary Year2Total FundsRow4: 0
	Salary Year2Total FundsRow5: 0
	Salary Year2Total FundsRow6: 0
	Salary Year2Total FundsRow7: 0
	Salary Year2Total FundsSubtotal: 0
	Consultant Year 2Total FundsRow1: 0
	Consultant Year 2Total FundsRow2: 0
	Consultant Year 2Total FundsRow3: 0
	Consultant Year 2Total FundsRow4: 0
	Consultant Year 2Total FundsRow5: 0
	Consultant Year2Total FundsSubtotal: 0
	Salary Year3Matching FundsRow1: 
	Salary Year3Matching FundsRow2: 
	Salary Year3Matching FundsRow3: 
	Salary Year3Matching FundsRow4: 
	Salary Year3Matching FundsRow5: 
	Salary Year3Matching FundsRow6: 
	Salary Year3Matching FundsRow7: 
	Salary Year3Matching FundsSubtotal: 0
	Consultant Year3Matching FundsRow1: 
	Consultant Year3Matching FundsRow2: 
	Consultant Year3Matching FundsRow3: 
	Consultant Year3Matching FundsRow4: 
	Consultant Year3Matching FundsRow5: 
	Consultant Year3Matching FundsSubtotal: 0
	Salary Year3LSTA FundsRow1: 
	Salary Year3LSTA FundsRow2: 
	Salary Year3LSTA FundsRow3: 
	Salary Year3LSTA FundsRow4: 
	Salary Year3LSTA FundsRow5: 
	Salary Year3LSTA FundsRow6: 
	Salary Year3LSTA FundsRow7: 
	Salary Year3LSTA FundsSubtotal: 0
	Consultant Year3LSTA FundsRow1: 
	Consultant Year3LSTA FundsRow2: 
	Consultant Year3LSTA FundsRow3: 
	Consultant Year3LSTA FundsRow4: 
	Consultant Year3LSTA FundsRow5: 
	Consultant Year3LSTA FundsSubtotal: 0
	Salary Year3Total FundsRow1: 0
	Salary Year3Total FundsRow2: 0
	Salary Year3Total FundsRow3: 0
	Salary Year3Total FundsRow4: 0
	Salary Year3Total FundsRow5: 0
	Salary Year3Total FundsRow6: 0
	Salary Year3Total FundsRow7: 0
	Salary Year3Total FundsSubtotal: 0
	Consultant Year3Total FundsRow1: 0
	Consultant Year3Total FundsRow2: 0
	Consultant Year3Total FundsRow3: 0
	Consultant Year3Total FundsRow4: 0
	Consultant Year3Total FundsRow5: 0
	Consultant Year3Total FundsSubtotal: 0
	TravelRow1: 
	TravelRow2: 
	TravelRow3: 
	TravelRow4: 
	TravelRow5: 
	SuppliesRow1: Aluminum Post stations for story walk
	SuppliesRow2: Concrete and rebar for install
	SuppliesRow3: Books and materials
	SuppliesRow4: 
	SuppliesRow5: 
	SuppliesRow6: 
	SuppliesRow7: 
	SuppliesRow8: 
	SuppliesRow9: 
	SuppliesRow10: 
	SuppliesRow11: 
	SuppliesRow12: 
	SuppliesRow13: 
	SuppliesRow14: 
	SuppliesRow15: 
	SuppliesRow16: 
	SuppliesRow17: 
	SuppliesRow18: 
	Travel Year1Matching FundsRow1: 
	Travel Year1Matching FundsRow2: 
	Travel Year1Matching FundsRow3: 
	Travel Year1Matching FundsRow4: 
	Travel Year1Matching FundsRow5: 
	Travel Year1Matching FundsSubtotal: 0
	Supplies Year1Matching FundsRow1: 1947.00
	Supplies Year1Matching FundsRow2: 60.00
	Supplies Year1Matching FundsRow3: 300
	Supplies Year1Matching FundsRow4: 
	Supplies Year1Matching FundsRow5: 
	Supplies Year1Matching FundsRow6: 
	Supplies Year1Matching FundsRow7: 
	Supplies Year1Matching FundsRow8: 
	Supplies Year1Matching FundsRow9: 
	Supplies Year1Matching FundsRow10: 
	Supplies Year1Matching FundsRow11: 
	Supplies Year1Matching FundsRow12: 
	Supplies Year1Matching FundsRow13: 
	Supplies Year1Matching FundsRow14: 
	Supplies Year1Matching FundsRow15: 
	Supplies Year1Matching FundsRow16: 
	Supplies Year1Matching FundsRow17: 
	Supplies Year1Matching FundsRow18: 
	Supplies Year1Matching FundsSubtotal: 2307
	Travel Year1LSTA FundsRow1: 
	Travel Year1LSTA FundsRow2: 
	Travel Year1LSTA FundsRow3: 
	Travel Year1LSTA FundsRow4: 
	Travel Year1LSTA FundsRow5: 
	Travel Year1LSTA FundsSubtotal: 0
	Supplies Year1LSTA FundsRow1: 17510.74
	Supplies Year1LSTA FundsRow2: 540.41
	Supplies Year1LSTA FundsRow3: 1350
	Supplies Year1LSTA FundsRow4: 
	Supplies Year1LSTA FundsRow5: 
	Supplies Year1LSTA FundsRow6: 
	Supplies Year1LSTA FundsRow7: 
	Supplies Year1LSTA FundsRow8: 
	Supplies Year1LSTA FundsRow9: 
	Supplies Year1LSTA FundsRow10: 
	Supplies Year1LSTA FundsRow11: 
	Supplies Year1LSTA FundsRow12: 
	Supplies Year1LSTA FundsRow13: 
	Supplies Year1LSTA FundsRow14: 
	Supplies Year1LSTA FundsRow15: 
	Supplies Year1LSTA FundsRow16: 
	Supplies Year1LSTA FundsRow17: 
	Supplies Year1LSTA FundsRow18: 
	Supplies Year1LSTA FundsSubtotal: 19401.15
	Travel Year1Total FundsRow1: 0
	Travel Year1Total FundsRow2: 0
	Travel Year1Total FundsRow3: 0
	Travel Year1Total FundsRow4: 0
	Travel Year1Total FundsRow5: 0
	Travel Year1Total FundsSubtotal: 0
	Supplies Year1Total FundsRow1: 19457.74
	Supplies Year1Total FundsRow2: 600.41
	Supplies Year1Total FundsRow3: 1650
	Supplies Year1Total FundsRow4: 0
	Supplies Year1Total FundsRow5: 0
	Supplies Year1Total FundsRow6: 0
	Supplies Year1Total FundsRow7: 0
	Supplies Year1Total FundsRow8: 0
	Supplies Year1Total FundsRow9: 0
	Supplies Year1Total FundsRow10: 0
	Supplies Year1Total FundsRow11: 0
	Supplies Year1Total FundsRow12: 0
	Supplies Year1Total FundsRow13: 0
	Supplies Year1Total FundsRow14: 0
	Supplies Year1Total FundsRow15: 0
	Supplies Year1Total FundsRow16: 0
	Supplies Year1Total FundsRow17: 0
	Supplies Year1Total FundsRow18: 0
	Supplies Year1Total FundsSubtotal: 21708.15
	Travel Year2Matching FundsRow1: 
	Travel Year2Matching FundsRow2: 
	Travel Year2Matching FundsRow3: 
	Travel Year2Matching FundsRow4: 
	Travel Year2Matching FundsRow5: 
	Travel Year2Matching FundsSubtotal: 0
	Supplies Year2Matching FundsRow1: 
	Supplies Year2Matching FundsRow2: 
	Supplies Year2Matching FundsRow3: 
	Supplies Year2Matching FundsRow4: 
	Supplies Year2Matching FundsRow5: 
	Supplies Year2Matching FundsRow6: 
	Supplies Year2Matching FundsRow7: 
	Supplies Year2Matching FundsRow8: 
	Supplies Year2Matching FundsRow9: 
	Supplies Year2Matching FundsRow10: 
	Supplies Year2Matching FundsRow11: 
	Supplies Year2Matching FundsRow12: 
	Supplies Year2Matching FundsRow13: 
	Supplies Year2Matching FundsRow14: 
	Supplies Year2Matching FundsRow15: 
	Supplies Year2Matching FundsRow16: 
	Supplies Year2Matching FundsRow17: 
	Supplies Year2Matching FundsRow18: 
	Supplies Year2Matching FundsSubtotal: 0
	Travel Year2LSTA FundsRow1: 
	Travel Year2LSTA FundsRow2: 
	Travel Year2LSTA FundsRow3: 
	Travel Year2LSTA FundsRow4: 
	Travel Year2LSTA FundsRow5: 
	Travel Year2LSTA FundsSubtotal: 0
	Supplies Year2LSTA FundsRow1: 
	Supplies Year2LSTA FundsRow2: 
	Supplies Year2LSTA FundsRow3: 
	Supplies Year2LSTA FundsRow4: 
	Supplies Year2LSTA FundsRow5: 
	Supplies Year2LSTA FundsRow6: 
	Supplies Year2LSTA FundsRow7: 
	Supplies Year2LSTA FundsRow8: 
	Supplies Year2LSTA FundsRow9: 
	Supplies Year2LSTA FundsRow10: 
	Supplies Year2LSTA FundsRow11: 
	Supplies Year2LSTA FundsRow12: 
	Supplies Year2LSTA FundsRow13: 
	Supplies Year2LSTA FundsRow14: 
	Supplies Year2LSTA FundsRow15: 
	Supplies Year2LSTA FundsRow16: 
	Supplies Year2LSTA FundsRow17: 
	Supplies Year2LSTA FundsRow18: 
	Supplies Year2LSTA FundsSubtotal: 0
	Travel Year2Total FundsRow1: 0
	Travel Year2Total FundsRow2: 0
	Travel Year2Total FundsRow3: 0
	Travel Year2Total FundsRow4: 0
	Travel Year2Total FundsRow5: 0
	Travel Year2Total FundsSubtotal: 0
	Supplies Year2Total FundsRow1: 0
	Supplies Year2Total FundsRow2: 0
	Supplies Year2Total FundsRow3: 0
	Supplies Year2Total FundsRow4: 0
	Supplies Year2Total FundsRow5: 0
	Supplies Year2Total FundsRow6: 0
	Supplies Year2Total FundsRow7: 0
	Supplies Year2Total FundsRow8: 0
	Supplies Year2Total FundsRow9: 0
	Supplies Year2Total FundsRow10: 0
	Supplies Year2Total FundsRow11: 0
	Supplies Year2Total FundsRow12: 0
	Supplies Year2Total FundsRow13: 0
	Supplies Year2Total FundsRow14: 0
	Supplies Year2Total FundsRow15: 0
	Supplies Year2Total FundsRow16: 0
	Supplies Year2Total FundsRow17: 0
	Supplies Year2Total FundsRow18: 0
	Supplies Year2Total FundsSubtotal: 0
	Travel Year3Matching FundsRow1: 
	Travel Year3Matching FundsRow2: 
	Travel Year3Matching FundsRow3: 
	Travel Year3Matching FundsRow4: 
	Travel Year3Matching FundsRow5: 
	Travel Year3Matching FundsSubtotal: 0
	Supplies Year3Matching FundsRow1: 
	Supplies Year3Matching FundsRow2: 
	Supplies Year3Matching FundsRow3: 
	Supplies Year3Matching FundsRow4: 
	Supplies Year3Matching FundsRow5: 
	Supplies Year3Matching FundsRow6: 
	Supplies Year3Matching FundsRow7: 
	Supplies Year3Matching FundsRow8: 
	Supplies Year3Matching FundsRow9: 
	Supplies Year3Matching FundsRow10: 
	Supplies Year3Matching FundsRow11: 
	Supplies Year3Matching FundsRow12: 
	Supplies Year3Matching FundsRow13: 
	Supplies Year3Matching FundsRow14: 
	Supplies Year3Matching FundsRow15: 
	Supplies Year3Matching FundsRow16: 
	Supplies Year3Matching FundsRow17: 
	Supplies Year3Matching FundsRow18: 
	Supplies Year3Matching FundsSubtotal: 0
	Travel Year3LSTA FundsRow1: 
	Travel Year3LSTA FundsRow2: 
	Travel Year3LSTA FundsRow3: 
	Travel Year3LSTA FundsRow4: 
	Travel Year3LSTA FundsRow5: 
	Travel Year3LSTA FundsSubtotal: 0
	Supplies Year3LSTA FundsRow1: 
	Supplies Year3LSTA FundsRow2: 
	Supplies Year3LSTA FundsRow3: 
	Supplies Year3LSTA FundsRow4: 
	Supplies Year3LSTA FundsRow5: 
	Supplies Year3LSTA FundsRow6: 
	SuppliesYear3LSTA FundsRow7: 
	SuppliesYear3LSTA FundsRow8: 
	SuppliesYear3LSTA FundsRow9: 
	SuppliesYear3LSTA FundsRow10: 
	SuppliesYear3LSTA FundsRow11: 
	SuppliesYear3LSTA FundsRow12: 
	SuppliesYear3LSTA FundsRow13: 
	SuppliesYear3LSTA FundsRow14: 
	SuppliesYear3LSTA FundsRow15: 
	SuppliesYear3LSTA FundsRow16: 
	SuppliesYear3LSTA FundsRow17: 
	SuppliesYear3LSTA FundsRow18: 
	SuppliesYear3LSTA FundsSubtotal: 0
	Travel Year3Total FundsRow1: 0
	Travel Year3Total FundsRow2: 0
	Travel Year3Total FundsRow3: 0
	Travel Year3Total FundsRow4: 0
	Travel Year3Total FundsRow5: 0
	Travel Year3Total FundsSubtotal: 0
	SuppliesYear3Total FundsRow1: 0
	SuppliesYear3Total FundsRow2: 0
	SuppliesYear3Total FundsRow3: 0
	SuppliesYear3Total FundsRow4: 0
	SuppliesYear3Total FundsRow5: 0
	SuppliesYear3Total FundsRow6: 0
	SuppliesYear3Total FundsRow7: 0
	SuppliesYear3Total FundsRow8: 0
	SuppliesYear3Total FundsRow9: 0
	SuppliesYear3Total FundsRow10: 0
	SuppliesYear3Total FundsRow11: 0
	SuppliesYear3Total FundsRow12: 0
	SuppliesYear3Total FundsRow13: 0
	SuppliesYear3Total FundsRow14: 0
	SuppliesYear3Total FundsRow15: 0
	SuppliesYear3Total FundsRow16: 0
	SuppliesYear3Total FundsRow17: 0
	SuppliesYear3Total FundsRow18: 0
	SuppliesYear3Total FundsSubtotal: 0
	EquipmentRow1: 
	EquipmentRow2: 
	EquipmentRow3: 
	EquipmentRow4: 
	EquipmentRow5: 
	EquipmentRow6: 
	EquipmentRow7: 
	ServicesRow1: 
	ServicesRow2: 
	ServicesRow3: 
	ServicesRow4: 
	ServicesRow5: 
	ServicesRow6: 
	ServicesRow7: 
	ServicesRow8: 
	Equipment Year1Matching FundsRow1: 
	Equipment Year1Matching FundsRow2: 
	Equipment Year1Matching FundsRow3: 
	Equipment Year1Matching FundsRow4: 
	Equipment Year1Matching FundsRow5: 
	Equipment Year1Matching FundsRow6: 
	Equipment Year1Matching FundsRow7: 
	Equipment Year1Matching FundsSubtotal: 0
	Services Year1Matching FundsRow1: 
	Services Year1Matching FundsRow2: 
	Services Year1Matching FundsRow3: 
	Services Year1Matching FundsRow4: 
	Services Year1Matching FundsRow5: 
	Services Year1Matching FundsRow6: 
	Services Year1Matching FundsRow7: 
	Services Year1Matching FundsRow8: 
	Services Year1Matching FundsSubtotal: 0
	Year 1 DirectCostsMatching FundsSubtotals: 2307
	Equipment Year1LSTA FundsRow1: 
	Equipment Year1LSTA FundsRow2: 
	Equipment Year1LSTA FundsRow3: 
	Equipment Year1LSTA FundsRow4: 
	Equipment Year1LSTA FundsRow5: 
	Equipment Year1LSTA FundsRow6: 
	Equipment Year1LSTA FundsRow7: 
	Equipment Year1LSTA FundsSubtotal: 0
	Services Year1LSTA FundsRow1: 
	Services Year1LSTA FundsRow2: 
	Services Year1LSTA FundsRow3: 
	Services Year1LSTA FundsRow4: 
	Services Year1LSTA FundsRow5: 
	Services Year1LSTA FundsRow6: 
	Services Year1LSTA FundsRow7: 
	Services Year1LSTA FundsRow8: 
	Services Year1LSTA FundsSubtotal: 0
	Year 1 DirectCostsLSTA FundsSubtotals: 19401.15
	Equipment Year1Total FundsRow1: 0
	Equipment Year1Total FundsRow2: 0
	Equipment Year1Total FundsRow3: 0
	Equipment Year1Total FundsRow4: 0
	Equipment Year1Total FundsRow5: 0
	Equipment Year1Total FundsRow6: 0
	Equipment Year1Total FundsRow7: 0
	Equipment Year1Total FundsSubtotal: 0
	Services Year1Total FundsRow1: 0
	Services Year1Total FundsRow2: 0
	Services Year1Total FundsRow3: 0
	Services Year1Total FundsRow4: 0
	Services Year1Total FundsRow5: 0
	Services Year1Total FundsRow6: 0
	Services Year1Total FundsRow7: 0
	Services Year1Total FundsRow8: 0
	Services Year1Total FundsSubtotal: 0
	Year 1 DirectCostsTotal FundsSubtotals: 21708.15
	Equipment Year2Matching FundsRow1: 
	Equipment Year2Matching FundsRow2: 
	Equipment Year2Matching FundsRow3: 
	Equipment Year2Matching FundsRow4: 
	Equipment Year2Matching FundsRow5: 
	Equipment Year2Matching FundsRow6: 
	Equipment Year2Matching FundsRow7: 
	Equipment Year2Matching FundsSubtotal: 0
	Services Year2Matching FundsRow1: 
	Services Year2Matching FundsRow2: 
	Services Year2Matching FundsRow3: 
	Services Year2Matching FundsRow4: 
	Services Year2Matching FundsRow5: 
	Services Year2Matching FundsRow6: 
	Services Year2Matching FundsRow7: 
	Services Year2Matching FundsRow8: 
	Services Year2Matching FundsSubtotal: 0
	Year 2 DirectCostsMatching FundsSubtotals: 0
	Equipment Year2LSTA FundsRow1: 
	Equipment Year2LSTA FundsRow2: 
	Equipment Year2LSTA FundsRow3: 
	Equipment Year2LSTA FundsRow4: 
	Equipment Year2LSTA FundsRow5: 
	Equipment Year2LSTA FundsRow6: 
	Equipment Year2LSTA FundsRow7: 
	Equipment Year2LSTA FundsSubtotal: 0
	Services Year2LSTA FundsRow1: 
	Services Year2LSTA FundsRow2: 
	Services Year2LSTA FundsRow3: 
	Services Year2LSTA FundsRow4: 
	Services Year2LSTA FundsRow5: 
	Services Year2LSTA FundsRow6: 
	Services Year2LSTA FundsRow7: 
	Services Year2LSTA FundsRow8: 
	Services Year2LSTA FundsSubtotal: 0
	Year 2 DirectCostsLSTA FundsSubtotals: 0
	Equipment Year2Total FundsRow1: 0
	Equipment Year2Total FundsRow2: 0
	Equipment Year2Total FundsRow3: 0
	Equipment Year2Total FundsRow4: 0
	Equipment Year2Total FundsRow5: 0
	Equipment Year2Total FundsRow6: 0
	Equipment Year2Total FundsRow7: 0
	Equipment Year2Total FundsSubtotal: 0
	Services Year2Total FundsRow1: 0
	Services Year2Total FundsRow2: 0
	Services Year2Total FundsRow3: 0
	Services Year2Total FundsRow4: 0
	Services Year2Total FundsRow5: 0
	Services Year2Total FundsRow6: 0
	Services Year2Total FundsRow7: 0
	Services Year2Total FundsRow8: 0
	Services Year2Total FundsSubtotal: 0
	Year 2 DirectCostsTotal FundsSubtotals: 0
	Equipment Year3Matching FundsRow1: 
	Equipment Year3Matching FundsRow2: 
	Equipment Year3Matching FundsRow3: 
	Equipment Year3Matching FundsRow4: 
	Equipment Year3Matching FundsRow5: 
	Equipment Year3Matching FundsRow6: 
	Equipment Year3Matching FundsRow7: 
	Equipment Year3Matching FundsSubtotal: 0
	Services Year3Matching FundsRow1: 
	Services Year3Matching FundsRow2: 
	Services Year3Matching FundsRow3: 
	Services Year3Matching FundsRow4: 
	Services Year3Matching FundsRow5: 
	Services Year3Matching FundsRow6: 
	Services Year3Matching FundsRow7: 
	Services Year3Matching FundsRow8: 
	Services Year3Matching FundsSubtotal: 0
	Year 3 DirectCostsMatching FundsSubtotals: 0
	Equipment Year3LSTA FundsRow1: 
	Equipment Year3LSTA FundsRow2: 
	Equipment Year3LSTA FundsRow3: 
	Equipment Year3LSTA FundsRow4: 
	Equipment Year3LSTA FundsRow5: 
	Equipment Year3LSTA FundsRow6: 
	Equipment Year3LSTA FundsRow7: 
	Equipment Year3LSTA FundsSubtotal: 0
	Services Year3LSTA FundsRow1: 
	Services Year3LSTA FundsRow2: 
	Services Year3LSTA FundsRow3: 
	Services Year3LSTA FundsRow4: 
	Services Year3LSTA FundsRow5: 
	Services Year3LSTA FundsRow6: 
	Services Year3LSTA FundsRow7: 
	Services Year3LSTA FundsRow8: 
	Services Year3LSTA FundsSubtotal: 0
	Year 3 DirectCostsLSTA FundsSubtotals: 0
	Equipment Year3Total FundsRow1: 0
	Equipment Year3Total FundsRow2: 0
	Equipment Year3Total FundsRow3: 0
	Equipment Year3Total FundsRow4: 0
	Equipment Year3Total FundsRow5: 0
	Equipment Year3Total FundsRow6: 0
	Equipment Year3Total FundsRow7: 0
	Equipment Year3Total FundsSubtotal: 0
	Services Year3Total FundsRow1: 0
	Services Year3Total FundsRow2: 0
	Services Year3Total FundsRow3: 0
	Services Year3Total FundsRow4: 0
	Services Year3Total FundsRow5: 0
	Services Year3Total FundsRow6: 0
	Services Year3Total FundsRow7: 0
	Services Year3Total FundsRow8: 0
	Services Year3Total FundsSubtotal: 0
	Year 3 DirectCostsTotal FundsSubtotals: 0
	IDCRow1: 
	IDCRow2: 
	IDC: Not including
	IDC Year1Matching FundsRow1: 
	IDC Year1Matching FundsRow2: 
	IDC Year1Matching Funds Subtotal: 0
	Year 1 MatchingFundsTotal: 2307
	Year 1 budgeted match: 0.106273450294014
	IDC rate: 
	IDC Year1LSTA FundsRow1: 
	IDC Year1LSTA FundsRow2: 
	IDC Year1LSTA Funds Subtotal: 0
	Year 1 LSTAFundsTotal: 19401.15
	IDC Year1Total FundsRow1: 0
	IDC Year1Total FundsRow2: 0
	IDC Year1Total Funds Subtotal: 0
	Year 1 TotalFundsTotal: 21708.15
	IDC Year2Matching FundsRow1: 
	IDC Year2Matching FundsRow2: 
	IDC Year2Matching Funds Subtotal: 0
	Year 2 MatchingFundsTotal: 0
	Year2 budgeted match: 
	IDC Year2LSTA FundsRow1: 
	IDC Year2LSTA FundsRow2: 
	IDC Year2LSTA Funds Subtotal: 0
	Year 2 LSTAFundsTotal: 0
	IDC Year2Total FundsRow1: 0
	IDC Year2Total FundsRow2: 0
	IDC Year2Total Funds Subtotal: 0
	Year 2 TotalFundsTotal: 0
	IDC Year3Matching FundsRow1: 
	IDC Year3Matching FundsRow2: 
	IDC Year3Matching Funds Subtotal: 0
	Year 3 MatchingFundsTotal: 0
	Year 3 budgeted match: 
	IDC Year3LSTA FundsRow1: 
	IDC Year3LSTA FundsRow2: 
	IDC Year3LSTA Funds Subtotal: 0
	Year 3 LSTAFundsTotal: 0
	IDC Year3Total FundsRow1: 0
	IDC Year3Total FundsRow2: 0
	IDC Year3Total Funds Subtotal: 0
	Year 3 TotalFundsTotal: 0


